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LETTER TO THE SPEAKER OF PARLIAMENT
Honourable Baleka Mbete
Speaker of the National Assembly
It gives me great pleasure to submit the Annual Report of the Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB) for the
period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017.
The report has been prepared in terms of section 40(1) of the PFMA, 1999 and the Treasury Regulations paragraph 18.2,
that the accounting officer must submit an annual report with audited financial statements and the Auditor-General’s
report, to Parliament for tabling in Parliament.

Yours faithfully

___________________
Dr RRM Monareng
Chief Executive Officer
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1

GENERAL
INFORMATION
ABOUT PanSALB
Registered name:
Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB)
Registration number: N/A
Physical address:
5th Floor Provisus Building, 523 Stanza Bopape, Arcadia, 0083
Postal address:
Private Bag X08, Arcadia 0007
Telephone number:
+27 12 341 9638
Fax number:
+27 12 341 5938
Email address:
communication@pansalb.org
Website address:
www.pansalb.org
External auditors:
Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA)
Address: 300 Middel Street, New Muckleneuk, Pretoria
Bankers:
ABSA
Address: 230 Van Der Walt Street, Pretoria, 0002
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LIST OF
ABBREVIATIONS/
ACRONYMS

AGSA

Auditor-General of South Africa

CAPS

Curriculum Assessment Policy Statement

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

COSAT

Centre of Science and Technology

DAC

Department of Arts and Culture

DCAS

Department of Cultural Affairs and Sport

DCATA

Department of Culture, Arts and Traditional Affairs

DBE

Department of Basic Education

DSAC

Department of Sport, Arts and Culture

FSPLC

Free State Provincial Language Committee

GPLC

Gauteng Provincial Language Committee

HR

Human Resources

ICT

Information and Communications Technology

IEC

Independent Electoral Commission

KZNPLC

KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Language Committee

LPLC

Limpopo Provincial Language Committee

MEC

Member of the Executive Council

NCPLC

Northern Cape Provincial Language Committee

NLB

National Language Body

NLU

National Lexicography Unit

NWPLC

North West Provincial Language Committee

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PLC

Provincial Language Committee

PLF

Provincial Language Forum

SABC

South African Broadcasting Corporation

SAHRC

South African Human Rights Commission

SASL

South African Sign Language

SNLB

Sesotho National Language Body

WCED

Western Cape Education Department

WCPLC

Western Cape Provincial Language Committee
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S
OVERVIEW
Dr Rakwena Reginald Mpho Monareng
Chief Executive Officer

he nucleus of the PanSALB
enterprise is performance of its
constitutional mandate. It is a
closely focussed mission with
careful attention to details, purposeful
drive to herstel and wholehearted
commitment to legislative compliance.
Performance, delivery and sustenance
are the mainstay. Our five-year
Strategic Plan and the 2016/17 Annual
Performance
Plan
evince
the
continuous interplay of these key
elements. In contrast to the legacy
version of the two documents, the
current ones are set on Colin
Chapman’s
dictum
of
‘adding
lightness’. We have added “carbon
core’ so as to make them lean, mean
and
functional.
Light
weight
construction translates into weight
reduction that makes the documents
agile and precise. The implementation
within the context of our recent past
would
mean
a
relentless
yet
progressive progress towards the
target. We paced our progress with

02

added effort. Our brand quality is in the
ascendant.
In our brand, we are
creating a business athlete with
growing agility determined to deliver on
our athletic promise.
We are realising our intention to deliver
by appointing staff members in critical
institutional positions. They are as
follows:
• As Chief Financial Officer Mr
Ṱalifhani Khubana. He is
required to establish prudent
institutional fiduciary and
financial management. He is a
highly accomplished, resultsdriven strategic accounting
and financial management
executive with over nine years
of progressive experience in
finance strategy, governance
and operations management
within the public sector
environment, particularly in
schedule 3A public entities.
He is determined to achieve
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In our brand, we
are creating a
business athlete
with growing
agility determined
to deliver on our
athletic promise.
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clean audits. This is
evidenced by his experience,
which varies from achieving
unqualified audit opinion to
clean audit in most of the
entities he has worked for
prior to joining PanSALB. His
passion for languages
predates his joining the
PanSALB. He holds an MBA,
and B-Com Accounting
(Hons.) degrees and a
number of certificates in
various programmes including
Corporate Governance and
Risk Management. He is
currently studying towards a
Ph.D.
As Senior Manager Human
Resources, Kaelo
Maropefela. He has brought a
wealth of relevant experience
in human resources
management and
employment law practices
acquired over many years,
some at senior level. He is a
labour lawyer by qualification;
and his six tertiary
qualifications include two
Masters Degrees in law from
various universities. He
previously worked in different
sectors including parastatals,
universities, public service
and municipality. He has
demonstrated his ability to
influence a labour relations
stability process aimed at
addressing labour issues
relating to human resources
policies and conditions of
service. He has displayed
outstanding representation
skills at both the Commission
for Conciliation, Mediation and
Arbitration (CCMA) and
various Sectors’ Bargaining
Councils.
As Senior Manager:
Institutional Performance and
Governance, Mrs Mosima
Tau. She manifests solid
feminine power and a keen
eye for detail. Her guiding
principle is exactitude in
compliance reporting. She
presents a needle-point focus
on a system and institution
whose deliverables were not
always commensurate with
the Annual Performance Plan.
She has rapidly instituted
prudent performance. She
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holds a B-Tech (Public
Management). She previously
worked for the following
departments/ institutions and
delivered commendable
Service on Performance
Reporting: Home Affairs,
Agriculture, Defence, Human
Settlement, Government
Communication and
Information System and
National Prosecuting
Authority.
As Chief of staff, Mrs Khosa.
She has over 10 years of
experience in policy and
strategic management within
the public sector. She has
facilitated the reviewing of the
Water Services legislation as
a Principal Business
Economist at the Department
of Water Affairs and led the
establishment of Business
Process Outsourcing industry
whilst working for the
Mpumalanga Provincial
Government as a Business
Economist. She assisted in
the drafting of the Rural
Development Medium Term
Strategic Framework (2014 –
19) Chapter whilst she was
the Senior Strategy Analyst.
As he Deputy Director at the
Economic Development
Department, she was
responsible for overseeing,
monitoring and ensuring the
development and
implementation of economic
development action plans and
providing regular statistical
analysis of accords
performance trends. Prior to
joining the PanSALB she was
the Executive Coordinator
responsible for Institutional
Partnerships and assisted the
Land Bank Chief Executive
Officer with building of
synergies between the Bank &
other institutions within the
agricultural sector. She holds
degrees in Biotechnology and
Economics and is currently
finalising her Bachelor of
Honours: Public
Administration . She holds
professional certifications
from the University of
Stellenbosch in Financial
Management, Public Policy
Development, Social
Research Methodology and

•

Public Sector Monitoring &
Evaluation.
These colleagues have
granted us the necessary
energy, wisdom, expertise
and leadership to enhance
PanSALB’s delivery and
image. Re a ba amogela!

The Auditor-General of South Africa
(AGSA) declared a disclaimer opinion
and/or qualified opinion on our
institution for the past three years in
succession. It has been part of our
grand plan to exit this adverse
designation. The plethora of financial
and operational unsteadiness has
forced us to adopt an incremental
approach in cleaning up the institution.
The key strategy has been a narrow
focus on countable tangibles. We
addressed each according to our scant
human and financial resources. This
approach is operational and it is
bearing early fruit, in that the 2015/16
AGSA’s audit opinion broke the
disclaimer pattern as we received a
qualification. While that was neither our
ultimate target nor a source of pride it
was nevertheless a mark of progress
and a firm springboard for a better
2016/17 audit opinion.
The staff
morale, performance and coexistence
have improved considerably.
Our brand presence and relevance
were clearly displayed by the many
activities that we conducted during
Language Activism
Month
in
commemoration of the International
Mother Language Day. The launch of
this event introduced our solemn
institution to the public and strategic
partners anew. The presence of the
Parliamentary Portfolio Committee
(Arts and Culture, the committees we
report to); Media houses, academic
and other strategic partners including
virtual
audience
(SABC
Radio
listenership) and a venue filled to
capacity bespeak an institution that is
intent on gaining public attention. The
public hearing sessions confirmed us
as an institution that holds the
government to account on the
implementation of the Use of Official
Languages Act. The session was
expertly executed and it has resulted in
a comprehensive report which is at
present being concluded. The findings
and recommendations will be binding
on all National Departments as soon as
we present the entire report to
Parliament and it is accordingly
adopted. We shall thenceforth monitor
and enforce the recommendations.

These are the teeth which we have
been yearning for and which according
to many language users PanSALB is
bereft of. We shall reclaim our space
and use it responsibly to entrench
within
these
departments
the
multilingual ethos with a strong bias
towards the indigenous South African
languages.
We
engraved
an
ineffaceable mark in the conscience of
South African language users by
awarding those who contributed to the
development
of
South African
languages and to the 2016 matric
learners
for
their
outstanding
performance in these languages. The
excellent public lecture delivered by the
eminent Judge Albie Sach spoke aptly
to our theme line, “how official are our
official languages” and situated us
snugly as a consummate oscillator of
the “language matters” drive. It is
among the body of our solemn mantra.
The PanSALB brand value increased
considerably, aided by wide coverage
by City Press, Sunday Times, the Star,
Cape Times, SABC radio and
television, Independent media houses,
community
radio
stations
and
newspapers. Our successful three
hours Live Debate broadcast by ETV
and the four hours Morning Live hosted
by SABC Channel 404 brought us the
needed cachet.
We received
commendation during the 2017/18
budget speech in parliament for our
improved state of affairs. The phoenix
is progressively and methodically rising
from the ashes.
There are however still legacy matters
that constrict swift but quality progress
towards a wholesome and healthy
operating constitutional Institution. The
outstanding labour dispute relating to
the dismissed employees has been a
cause of great concern. We settled with
some and are negotiating with others to
finalise the matter. The accumulated
costs (since 2001 to date) of funding
the NLUs is yet another financial strain.
These units were established in 2001
without funding being transferred to
PanSALB. The deficit accumulated
since then has rendered PanSALB
financially insecure. The fact that a
budgetary portion originally set aside
for PLCs and NLBs is diverted to NLUs
renders the former two structures
ineffective. The further their allocation
is cut; the worse becomes their
performance in carrying out the
PanSALB mandate. We shall trudge
on, regardless.

Lack of funding further determines that other critical vacant positions will not be
filled, staff development opportunities will be unattainable and the cross-border
multilingual enterprise may be hampered. Notwithstanding these impediments,
we seek actively for financial assistance and shall knock on all doors. We strive
for excellence and shall pursue our intent assiduously, enlivening our earnest
conviction that excellence does not need to broadcast itself because it is
recognised by those who matter, namely language users. They matter.
Absolutely!
Irrespective of the challenges that confronted the institution, we received a
commendable unqualified audit opinion. This is an appreciable breakaway from
the line of unsavoury audits that have been our normative state for the
successive 2013/14 and 2014/15 financial years. The genesis of this progressive
ascension was marked earnestly by our 2015/16 qualified audit performance.
We are indeed inveterate soul of professionals that aims at the bull right into its
eyes.
The contribution made by the entire PanSALB community as reflected in this
report is laudable. The collective interplay of everybody’s effort from different
vantage points is commendable.
Ke a leboga. Khanimambo. Ndiyabulela, Ndo livhuwa.
A re šomeng!

_________________
Dr RRM Monareng
Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR AND CONFIRMATION OF THE
ACCURACY OF THE ANNUAL
REPORT

ANNUAL
REPORT
4
2016/17
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.
The Annual Report is complete, accurate and free from any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the Annual Report as issued by the National
Treasury.
The annual financial statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards applicable to the
constitutional institution.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made
in this information.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information
and the annual financial statements.
The external auditors were engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In my opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources
information and the financial affairs of the constitutional institution for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.
Yours faithfully

___________________
Dr RRM Monareng
Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2016
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STRATEGIC
OVERVIEW

5.1 VISION
To be the pre-eminent promoter and enabler of multilingualism and language rights in South Africa.

5.2 MISSION
In pursuance of its vision, the PanSALB mission is to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

promote multilingualism
create conditions for the development and use of all official South African languages, including the Khoi,
Nama and San languages and South African Sign Language
promote respect and recognition for all languages, including previously marginalised languages and all other
languages commonly used by South African communities
promote the development of previously marginalised languages
advocate for rights relating to language and the status of language
initiate, enable and conduct research in accordance with the PanSALB mandate.

5.3 VALUES
PanSALB subscribes to the following values:
Values

Operating principles

Respect

Respect for all the languages used in South Africa.
Treating each other with dignity and respect.

Equality

Equitable treatment of all official languages in South Africa.

Quality

Ensuring quality of language products and language use for all formerly marginalised official
languages, as well as the Khoi, Nama and San languagesandSouth African Sign Language

Accountability

Accountable for actions towards clients, stakeholders and one another.

Integrity

Open, honest and transparentin all our operations and activities.

Accessibility

Ensuring increased access to information about services to citizens in the
language of their choice, with the focus on all formerly marginalised official languages, as well
as the Khoi, Nama, San languages and South African Sign Language.

Service
orientation

Setting of and adherence to service standards.Courteousness.Promptness.Efficiency
and effectiveness.
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5.4 STRATEGIC OUTCOME-ORIENTED GOALS
The construction of these goals is informed by the National Treasury Framework. The goals capture the
essence of both the PanSALB Act and the constitutional mandate of PanSALB.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 1
Goal statement
Strategic outcome-oriented goal 2

Create conducive settings that nurture language development, use and discourse
within the multilingual interplay and symbiotic coexistence of South African
official languages, Khoi, San and Nama, South African Sign Language and their
associate varieties
Equitable use of all South African languages

Goal statement

Support the establishment of platforms that advance the equitable use of the
languages cited in the strategic outcome-oriented goal 1 (above) with a meaningful
leaning towards the previously marginalised indigenous South African languages

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 3

Establishment of a linguistic human rights ethos

Goal statement

Establish platforms to address linguistic human rights matters

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 4

Establishment of research capacity

Goal statement

Initiate, facilitate and support research into a range of topics relevant to
PanSALB’s mandate

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 5

Promotion of PanSALB’s mandated deliverables

Goal statement
Strategic outcome-oriented goal 6
Goal statement

12

Creation of conditions for the development and use of the
South African languages

Promote the institution’s performance and activities with regard tolanguage
development, language useand discourse and linguistic human rights to an
array of stakeholders
Creation of the organisation’s sustainable institutional ability to deliver
on the core business and comply with legislation, regulations and prescripts
Create a solid institutional and administrative base for PanSALB to carry out its
mandate inrelation to finance, information technology, human resources,
institutional planning and performance and risk management
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LEGISLATIVE AND
OTHER MANDATES

PanSALB derives its mandate primarily from the Constitution and the PanSALB Act. It
also derives other aspects of its mandate from additional pieces of legislation as well as
policies, directives and prescripts.

6.1 CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE
Sections 6(5)(a) and (b) of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act No. 108 of 1996)
provide for the establishment of a Pan South African Language Board as follows:
A Pan South African Language Board established by national legislation must:
(a) promote and create conditions for the development and use of
(i) all official languages;
(ii) the Khoi, Nama and San languages; and
(iii) sign language; and
(b) promote and ensure respect for
(i) all languages commonly used by communities in South Africa, including German,
Greek, Gujarati, Hindi, Portuguese, Tamil, Telegu and Urdu; and
(ii) Arabic, Hebrew, Sanskrit and other languages used for religious purposes in South
Africa.
Section 181 of the Constitution states the following about the rights of constitutional entities:
•
•
•

These institutions are independent and subject only to the Constitution and the law, and they must be impartial and
must exercise their powers and perform their functions without fear, favour or prejudice.
Other organs of state, through legislative and other measures, must assist and protect these institutions to ensure the
independence, impartiality, dignity and effectiveness of these institutions.
No person or organ of state may interfere with the functioning of these institutions.

6.2 LEGISLATIVE MANDATES
In addition to the Constitution, the following pieces of legislation also have either a direct or indirect bearing on PanSALB’s
mandate:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The PanSALB Act (No. 59 of 1995 as amended in 1999)
The Use of Official Languages Act (No. 12 of 2012)
The Public Services Act (No. 103 of 1994 as amended in 2007)
The Public Finance Management Act (No. 29 of 1999)
The Companies Act (No. 71 of 2008)
The Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act (No. 13 of 2005)
The Promotion of Access to Information Act (No. 2 of 2000)
The Labour Relations Act (No. 66 of 1996)
The Basic Conditions of Employment Act (No. 75 of 1995)
The Employment Equity Act (No. 55 of 1998)
The Skills Development Act (No. 97 of 1998)
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6.2.1 The PanSALB Act (No. 59 of 1995 as amended in 1999)
In terms of Section 8 of the Pan South African Language Board Act No. 59 of 1995 (as amended), the organisation is
mandated to:
• make recommendations with regard to any proposed or existing legislation, practice or policy dealing directly
or indirectly with language matters at any level of government, and with regard to any proposed amendments
to or the repeal or replacement of such legislation, practice or policy;
• make recommendations to organs of state at all levels of government where it considers such action
advisable for adopting performance measures aimed at promoting multilingualism within the framework of
the Constitution;
• actively promote an awareness of multilingualism as a national resource;
• actively promote the development of previously marginalised languages;
• initiate studies and research aimed at promoting and creating conditions for the development and use of (i)
all the official languages of South Africa, (ii) the Khoi and San languages and (iii) South African Sign
Language;
• promote and ensure respect for all other languages commonly used by communities in South Africa;
• advise on the coordination of language planning in South Africa;
• facilitate cooperation with language-planning agencies outside South Africa;
• establish provincial language committees and national language boards to advise it on any language matter
affecting a province or a specific language; and
• establish national lexicography units to operate as companies limited by guarantee under Section 21 of the
Companies Act (No. 61 of 1973) and allocate funds to these units for the fulfilment of their functions.
In terms of Section 4 of the Act, PanSALB is an independent organ of state subject only to the Constitution and its founding
legislation, and it must perform its duties without fear, favour or prejudice. All organs of state are enjoined to cooperate with
PanSALB and may not interfere with its functioning in the execution of its mandate.
The primary objective of PanSALB is to promote multilingualism in South Africa by:
• creating conditions for the development and equitable use of all official languages;
• fostering respect for and encouraging the use of other languages in the country; and
• encouraging the best use of the country’s linguistic resources to enable South Africans to free themselves
from all forms of linguistic discrimination, domination and division and to enable them to exercise appropriate
linguistic choices for their own wellbeing as well as for national development.

6.2.2 The Use of Official Languages Act (No. 12 of 2012)
The Use of Official Languages Act No. 12 of 2012 came into operation on 2 May 2013. The objectives of the act are to:
• regulate and monitor national government’s use of official languages for government purposes;
• promote parity of esteem and equitable treatment of official languages of the Republic;
• facilitate equitable access to services and information of national government;
• promote good language management by national government for efficient public service administration and
to meet the needs of the public;
• require the adoption of a language policy by every national department, national public entity and national
public enterprise;
• provide for the establishment and functions of a national language unit and provide for the establishment and
functions of language units by every national department, national public entity and national public enter
prise;
• provide for the monitoring of and reporting on the use of official languages by national government;
• facilitate intergovernmental coordination of language units; and
• provide for matters connected therewith.

6.2.3 The Public Service Act (No. 103 of 1994 as amended in 2007)
This Act regulates and guides the functioning of national and provincial office bearers in the public service of the Republic of
South Africa. Its purpose is to regulate the conditions of employment, terms of office, discipline, retirement and discharge of
members of the public service.
PanSALB, being a public entity established through the PANSALB Act, is therefore subject to the rules, regulations and

14
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prescripts of the Public Service Act in the management of its employees and the work environment.

6.2.4 The Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (No. 1 of 1999)

This Act regulates financial management in the national and provincial governments. It aims to ensure that all revenue,
expenditure, assets and liabilities of national and provincial departments and public entities are managed effectively and
efficiently. The key objectives of the PFMA may be summarised as being to:
• Modernise the system of financial management in the public sector
• Enable public sector managers to manage but at the same time to be held more accountable
• Ensure the timely provision of quality information
• Eliminate waste and corruption in the use of public assets
It also sets out the responsibilities of persons entrusted with financial management in public sector institutions. PanSALB will
therefore strive to ensure adherence to the Act and all its concomitant regulations.

6.2.5 The Companies Act (No. 71 of 2008)
This act regulates the establishment and administration of all companies. These include both private sector companies as well
as public entities. The objectives of the act are inter alia to:
• Provide for the incorporation, registration, organisation and management of companies
• Define the relationships between companies and their respective shareholders
In general, the provisions of the Act do apply to PanSALB, although these provisions also have to be seen in the context
• Provide for the incorporation, registration, organisation and management of companies
• Define the relationships between companies and their respective shareholders
In general, the provisions of the Act do apply to PanSALB, although these provisions also have to be seen in the context of the
PanSALB Act and other relevant legislation.

6.2.6 The Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act (No. 13 of 2005)
This Act was passed to ensure that the principles of cooperative government as espoused in Chapter 3 of the Constitution are
implemented. Hence, the Act seeks to set up mechanisms to coordinate the work of all spheres of government in providing
services, alleviating poverty and promoting development. The Act thus provides for an institutional framework in order to
facilitate coherent government, effective provision of services, monitoring and implementation of policy and legislation and the
realisation of developmental goals as a whole. The objectives of the Act are the promotion of the following principles of
cooperative government:
• Coherent government (cohesiveness and cooperation)
• Effective provision of services
• Monitoring and implementation of policy and legislation
• Realisation of national priorities
The implication is, therefore, that to ensure that PanSALB can carry out its mandate, it will have to cooperate with relevant
national and provincial departments as well as municipalities on issues of mutual relevance and interest.

6.2.7 The Promotion of Access to Information Act (No. 2 of 2000)
This Act gives effect to the constitutional right of access to any information held by the State and any information that is held
by another person that is required for the exercise or protection of any rights. As such, this act is a ‘freedom of information law’.
This Act is enforced by the South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC). Its objectives are to:
• Give effect to the constitutional right of access to information held by the state
• Give effect to this right, subject to justifiable limitations, in a manner that balances this right with other rights
• Give effect to the practice of a human rights culture and social justice
• Provide transparency, accountability and effective governance of public bodies
All public institutions, PanSALB included, have a critical role to play in ensuring the implementation of this Act by:
• Receiving and responding to Promotion of Access to Information Act requests
• Compiling and submitting a Section 14 manual to the Commission
• Compiling and submitting Section 15 notices to the Minister of Justice
It is therefore imperative for PanSALB to take these obligations seriously. This will require that PanSALB put in place the
requisite information management systems (including records management policies and file plans).
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6.2.8 The Labour Relations Act (No. 66 of 1995)
This Act was passed in 1995 and was subsequently amended in 1996 and 2015. Its key objectives are to:
•
•
•
•

Give effect to and regulate the fundamental rights conferred by Section 23 of the Constitution
Give effect to obligations incurred by the Republic as a member state of the International Labour Organization
Provide a framework within which employees and their trade unions, employers and employers’
organisations can collectively bargain and formulate industrial and labour policy
Promote orderly collective bargaining at sector level and employee participation in decision making in the
workplace in order to effectively resolve labour disputes.

As is the case with any other employer in the country, PanSALB is subject to this act in the conducting of its relations with
employees.

6.2.9 The Basic Conditions of Employment Act (No. 75 of 1997)
The purpose of this act is to advance economic development and social justice by:
•
•
•

Giving effect to and regulating the rights to fair labour practices as conferred by Section 23(1) of the Constitution
Establishing and enforcing basic conditions of employment
Giving effect to obligations incurred by the country as a member state of the International Labour
Organization.

The obvious implication of this Act for PanSALB is that it must adhere to the provisions of the act in order to uphold at least the
minimum requirements for fair working conditions.

6.2.10 The Employment Equity Act (No. 55 of 1998)
The purpose of the act is to achieve equity in the workplace by:
•
•

Promoting equal opportunity and fair treatment in employment through the elimination of unfair discrimination
Implementing affirmative action measures to redress the disadvantages in employment experienced by designated
groups in order to ensure their equitable representation in all occupational categories and levels in the workplace

The implication of this is that as PanSALB implements its process of filling its organisational structure, the provisions of this
act will have to be borne in mind.

6.2.11 The Skills Development Act (No. 97 of 1998)
The purpose of this act is to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provide an institutional framework to devise and implement national, sector and workplace strategies
Develop and improve the skills of the South African workforce
Integrate those strategies within the National Qualifications Framework
Provide for learnerships that lead to recognised occupational qualifications
Provide for the financing of skills development by means of a levy grant scheme and a National Skills Fund
Provide for and regulate employment services

This Act is very important in supporting employees to ensure the development of human resources (HR) capacity in order to
raise competency and competitive levels in the country. Seen in this particular context, there are obviously implications for
PanSALB.

6.3 POLICY MANDATES
A number of policy pronouncements have a bearing on the work of PanSALB. Policy mandates are derived from supporting
legislation and institutional, provincial and national policies. Examples are listed below:
•
•
•
•
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National Treasury regulations, prescripts and directives
Public Service Regulations 2001 as amended
Department of Labour’s codes of good practice in the workplace
Fraud prevention policies
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•
•
•
•

Applicable general public service policies on procurement/supply chain management, good governance and best
practice
King III Report on Corporate Governance
Legal and regulatory imperatives for PanSALB functional areas
Norms and rules for provincial language committees and national language boards, published in Government
Gazettes: Board Notice 92 of 2005 and Board Notice 94 of 2005, respectively

For PanSALB to implement these policy mandates, it must follow the guidelines for establishing, monitoring and evaluating the
performance of these structures.

6.4 RELEVANT COUT RULINGS
There are no recent court rulings that have impacted on PanSALB’s mandate or that may necessitate a fundamental change
to its strategic direction.
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11

OVERVIEW OF
INSTITUTIONAL
PERFOMANCE

11.1 SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT
11.1.1 Language Development and Use
The focus of the dictionary development was to continue with the development of dictionaries in the eleven languages and
extend these activities to the Khoi/San/Nama and Sign languages. During the financial year the isiXhosa NLU developed the
Bilingual for English and IsiXhosa Dictionary which will be published in the next financial year. The Xitsonga NLU produced the
second edition of Dikixinari ya Xitsonga la ka Lingua franca, developed English – Xitsonga Bilingual Terminology dictionary
and English Xitsonga Bilingual Children’s Dictionary. The Setswana NLU collected terms from the State of the Nation Address
for 2017/18. The Tshivenda NLU revised the Tshivenda section of NJ Van Warmelo’s dictionary. The work covered makes 952
pages of the dictionary. The Afrikaans NLU launched the pilot project on redesigning of the Online Afrikaans dictionary (WAT).
The Khoe & San NLB hosted a !Xun Language Group partnership meeting for use and development of !Xunthali language on
24 May 2016. A Strategic partnership meeting was held with Prince Katjara on development and use of the Khwedam
language and on 26 May 2016 a strategic partnership meeting was also conducted with the SABC for use of Khoe and San
languages on SABC TV and Radio Stations. A successful hosting of the Khoe and San Languages Dialogue and Workshop
took place in Springbok from 26 to 29 September 2016. The Khoe & San NLB General Meeting was hosted on 29 September
2016 tabling matters for discussion on the use, development and promotion of Khoe and San languages nationally. The Khoe
& San official Launching of KhoeKhoegowab Dictionary Glossary to support the development and use of Khwe and San
languages took place on 30 September 2016.
The Tshivenda NLB hosted a day seminar reviewing Tshivenda Spelling and orthography on 13 October 2016 as well as a two
general meetings regarding the development of Tshivenda on 28 July 2016 and 14 October 2016. The Xitsonga NLB hosted a
two day review of Xitsonga Spelling and orthography rules on 26-28 October 2016 and a meeting regarding the use,
development and promotion of Xitsonga on 11-12 August 2016. The Sesotho sa Leboa NLB hosted a workshop on Spelling
and orthography rules for Sesotho sa Leboa on 5 October 2016 and meeting to discuss the development and use of Sesotho
sa Leboa on 25-26 July 2016 and 6 October 2016. The Sesotho NLB hosted a two day workshop on Spelling and Orthography
rules for Sesotho on 20 - 21 October 2016 and a meeting on 19 October 2016. The IsiNdebele NLB hosted the Agricultural
terminology verification workshop on 29 - 30 June 2017 and held a meeting with Ikwekwezi FM management aimed at
empowering the station with appropriate language use on 22 April 2016.
The isiNdebele NLB met with the Nkangala District of Education to discuss matters pertaining to the non-offering of isiNdebele
Language as a subject in Mpumalanga schools within the Nkangala district. The IsiNdebele NLB conducted a site visit to
Saaiplas where they discussed with the speech communities envisaged plans to introduce isiNdebele in schools around that
locality. The isiNdebele NLB also held a meeting with the department of Education at KwaMhlanga on 31 October 2016 to raise
concerns around the reluctance of other schools to introduce IsiNdebele within their curricula. The isiZulu NLB verified and
authenticated the Municipal Solid Waste Management terminology on 2- 3 March 2017. The Psychology terminology was also
verified on 16 April 2016 to ensure the use of correct isiZulu terminology and also hosted one general meeting. The Setswana
NLB held a plenary meeting for the Development of Setswana Terminology No.4 on 18-19 November 2017 and a meeting on
Language Violation at Mafikeng Primary School on 14 February 2017.The executive meeting was held on 6 July 2016 and a
general Setswana NLB meeting on 7-8 July 2016. The Afrikaans NLB, South African Sign Language NLB, English and isiSwati
NLB each hosted a meeting to discuss the development and use of these languages as well as plans and projects for
implementation. The Western Cape office hosted a Fundani Terminology Workshop with Cape Peninsula University of
Technology for the development and use of isiXhosa.
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11.1.2 Equitability of Language Use
The aim of this programme is to satisfy the requirement of equitability of language use within the South African multilingual
linguistic land scape. The purpose is to advance the maximum use of the previously marginalised indigenous languages in
public and private and in both formal and informal mode. PanSALB in pursuance of its mandate invited all national government
departments of the Republic of South Africa, including the Office of the Presidency – as anchors of service delivery to all South
African communities – to come and account for their observance of the prescripts of Act No. 12 of 2012, which in essence
fosters multilingualism within working spaces and beyond, in the spirit of social cohesion and nation building. In order to
monitor and investigate the observance of the Constitutional provisions regarding the use of languages and the provisions of
the Use of Official Languages Act (No. 12 of 2012) (the Languages Act), each national government department, guided by its
specific Constitutional mandate, is expected to present a language policy formulated in line with the prescripts of the
Languages Act (cf. Sections: 3.(2), 4.(1)(2)(3), including 5-9) respectively.
In terms of initiatives by PanSALB and other government related language structures to place the previously marginalised
indigenous languages in public and private institutions formal and informally, the Northern Cape (NC) collaborated with the
South African Human Rights Commission to conduct public hearings on discrimination against Khoe and San languages. The
province partnered with the NC HOD’s Forum to promote the use of languages in the province. Another partnership was
established in the NC with Sol Plaatjie Education Trust for the development and use of the Setswana language within the
province. The provincial offices in collaboration with the National Department of Public Works hosted workshops on the
implementation of approved language policy within the department. Platforms have been created with the Forums for
Institutions Supporting Democracy (FISD) at provincial level whereby communities are informed of the roles played by each
institution. The Limpopo Province (LP) participated in the Advisory Council Technical Working Group on Social Cohesion to
advise the premier on issues related to languages in the province. The LP Province collaborated with the Department of
Correctional Services on the Reading for Redemption programme to encourage inmates to inculcate the culture of reading
among the inmates. The Gauteng Province (GP) in collaboration with Inhlanganiso Writers’ Association hosted a language
career session to expose learners to language careers, focussing particularly on South African Indigenous languages. The
province further launched a Reading Club that has been established at Modderbbee prison to encourage a reading and writing
culture among the inmates. Gauteng Provincial language Committee conducted public hearings on the Use of Official
Languages Bill in partnership with the office of the Premier and the Department of Sports, Arts, Culture and Recreation. The
GP hosted a Language Conference to create a platform for participants to exchange views on how government departments
and municipalities have worked to promote multilingualism and develop previously marginalised languages. In order to further
the equitability of language use in the province the Gauteng Provincial Office entered into an agreement with the office of the
Gauteng Premier to implement the projected Youth Essay Writing Competition. The Gauteng and Western Cape offices
engaged in deliberations about language use in two schools (Pretoria High School and San Souci Girls High School) within the
provinces and advice on review of their language policies. The CEO also engaged with the Minister of Basic Education on
school language policy, development and implementation. PanSALB made contributions to the review of the University of
Pretoria Language Policy to further the development of the official South African Languages and to promote the use of official
languages.
The Mpumalanga Province (MP) collaborated with the National Library of South Africa to host a literary event in honour of the
late Dr P B Skhosana the isiNdebele author. The office, through the provincial manager, made a presentation during the
Traditional Leadership Summit hosted by Contralessa and Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
(GOGTA). All Provincial Offices partnered with the SABC community Radio Stations to promote the equitability of language
use. The KZN Provincial Office partnered with Kwa-Zulu Natal intergovernmental language forum (KWANILAFO) in monitoring
the activities undertaken by government departments and municipalities. The province collaborated with Blind and Deaf
Society (NGO) to provide sign language workshops. The Eastern Cape Province (EC) established a partnership with University
of Fort Hare to further the equitability of language use in the province. The Free State Provincial (FS) office participated in the
drafting of language policies for Thabo Mofutsanyane District Municipality and its local municipalities in order to implement
multilingualism. In monitoring the implementation of language policies, FS provincial office partnered with Department of Sport,
Arts, Culture and Recreation (DSACR) as well as the Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs (GOGTA)
to ensure that all municipalities draft language policies in the province and implement multilingualism. Gauteng Provincial
Office in collaboration with DeafSA hosted the Gauteng Deaf Schools debate to promote communication skills, in order to
empower, expose, teach and develop the Deaf Community and Schools. The Western Cape (WC) Province partnered with the
WC Education Department in a multilingual creative writing competition to ensure the equitability of language use in the
province.

11.1.3 Linguistic Human Rights
The inculcation of human rights culture includes linguistic human rights within a multilingual symbiosis of all South African
languages.

24
02 Annual
AnnualReport
Reportfor
for2016-17
2016-17Financial
FinancialYear
Year--PanSALB
PanSALB

The objectives of this focus are:
• to facilitate investigations of linguistic human rights violations and publish the findings of the Hearing
Committee,
• to raise public awareness in order to influence and promote multilingualism in all organs of society through effective
protection and promotion of linguistic human rights,
• to establish and maintain strategic partnerships with other constitutional bodies dealing with
linguistic human rights, and
• to act as an agent of change by making language findings public; and approaching institutions that
commit language rights violations with a view to assisting them with their practices and policies.
In this focus area PanSALB is supposed to commission a comparative study on language rights complaints systems; a
language rights study on the prevention of the use of any language for the purpose of exploitation, domination or division;
and a multi- disciplinary study on language and the law, alternative dispute resolution and related disciplines.
PanSALB has received 26 language right violation complaints in this year. All have been responded to, and 5 out of 26 have
been finalized. The other 21 complaints are still in the process of investigation and finalization, with monitoring in progress. In
order to establish a strategic partnership with other constitutional bodies dealing with linguistic human rights, PanSALB has
joined the Forum for Institutions Supporting Democracy (FISD) both nationally and in all the nine provinces. The provinces have
signed MOUs to strengthen the partnership and also to have clear terms of reference in the partnership. The FISD in the
provinces hold meetings quarterly for reporting and planning as well as co-hosting outreach campaigns to raise public
awareness in order to influence and promote multilingualism in all organs of society through effective protection and promotion
of linguistic human rights.
In terms of raising public awareness as stated, the Limpopo province hosted a Linguistic Human Rights Campaign at
ga-Nchabeleng and at Sedan Secondary School and also two Deaf Awareness Campaigns at Risinga High School and at
Thulamela Municipality. Gauteng provincial office hosted the Gauteng Deaf Awareness workshop at Ekurhuleni municipality as
a way of advocating Deaf Linguistic human rights. In collaboration with other FISD in the province, Gauteng Provincial Office
successfully celebrated Human Rights Day on the 24th of March 2017 at Ratanda community hall in Heidelberg and also
attended and participated in the four outreach campaigns held throughout the province in this year. The Northern Cape
attended the SAHRC Public Hearings in Kimberley and made a presentation on Khoe and San languages violations and
discriminatory practices provincially. It also, supported the Northern Cape march to the NC Premier’s Office against violations
of rights and for officialisation and use of SASL provincially. The provincial office was also invited and observed the NC DeafSA
SASL Solidarity Campaign march and handing over of a petition promoting SASL as the 12th official language.
In the Mpumalanga and Free State provinces Awareness Campaigns, Summit and Celebrations of the DeafSA month were
conducted in Emalahleni, Botshabelo, Bloemfontein and Thaba Nchu in order to arouse awareness of the Deaf community’s
linguistic rights and promote awareness of its language and culture. A Deaf Awareness Drama was held in the Free State in
Bloemfontein in collaboration with the Provincial Deaf Association to promote the linguistic rights of the Deaf members of our
country and a mini conference on translation and Deaf Awareness Campaign was held in the North West province. In the
Eastern Cape, the PanSALB hosted South African Sign Language Awareness Indaba in partnership with the Provincial
Department of Sport, Recreation, Arts and Culture in Grahamstown in order to showcase Deaf culture and promote awareness
of their linguistic human rights. The province also celebrated National Human Rights Day on 21 March 2017, including an
address by the President of the Republic of South Africa, his excellency President JG Zuma, at the Victoria Grounds Stadium
in King Williams Town.

11.1.4 Language Research
This sub-programme is meant to give scientific, academic and contemporary rigour and gravities to PanSALB’s practical
execution of its language mandate and it is in essence the marketing space where PanSALB shares its output and shows the
impact it has in advancing the multilingual mandate. by
• providing scientifically researched solutions to pertinent language issues that typify the impact of the changing world
and times on the South African multilingual landscape and vice versa,
• creating a platform to ensure respect, development, promotion and use of languages to promote multilingualism in
South Africa by means of conference paper presentations and publications in scholarly peer reviewed journals,
• engaging in collaborative research projects with reputable language research institutions and
• assisting in building the credibility of PanSALB in the language use and discourse arena.
The Board has created platforms within the NLUs in Limpopo Province by hosting the Annual African National Lexicographic
Conference (AFRILEX) hosted by Xitsonga NLU and Sesotho sa Leboa NLU during the month of July. The English National
Language Body, being concerned that simplistic understanding of the operation of multilingualism in our society may result in
misguided policy decisions, perceived a need to equip decision-makers with a deeper understanding of the sociolinguistics of
multilingualism. Speech-behaviour, particularly in urban settings, is increasingly marked by fluid movement between
languages, interconnection, effective code-switching and easy transcendence of conventional language boundaries.
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Accordingly the ENLB decided to embody relevant research by its members in a readily accessible booklet on English and
Multilingualism in South Africa, which they hope to see published by PanSALB.

11.1.5 Language Promotion
This sub-programme focuses on promotional activities to create awareness of different languages in order to promote and
further language development, language use, and language rights. PanSALB through the 9 provincial offices participated in the
67 Minutes of Mandela Day by distributing 67 dictionaries per province looking at the various languages of each province in
order to advance the use, identity and pride in the languages. The dictionaries were distributed to various schools to encourage
the learners to use the dictionaries in their own languages. These are the dictionaries that have been developed by different
National Lexicography Units of PanSALB. Gauteng Province hosted the Annual International Translation Day which is
celebrated annually on the 30th of September to show solidarity within the world-wide translation community in an effort to
promote the translation profession in different institutions. The celebration took the form of a language career expo to promote
language career opportunities and provide students with encouraging role models and the necessary knowledge and
commitment. The particular aim was to prepare the Applied Languages Students at Tshwane University of Technology. The
Day was also celebrated in Western Cape, Limpopo, Mpumalanga and North West Province.
To promote the language rights of the users of South African Sign Language, the institution hosted Deaf Awareness Month
through the provincial office in order to promote Deaf culture’s history, shared values, social norms, customs and technology
which are passed on from generation to generation. The purpose of the awareness campaigns to promote language rights is
to correct Deaf people’s view of themselves as belonging to a linguistic minority. . The Northern Cape PLC hosted the Sesotho
language and cultural celebration and Khoi San Languages Workshop to promote the use of the Sesotho and Khoi San
Language in the Province. Free State Province hosted the African Languages Public Speaking Competition to promote the use
of African Language in schools. Eastern Cape Province hosted the South African Sign Language Imbizo to promote the
linguistic rights of the Deaf community. The province also held the literature Summit to promote the development and use of
Sesotho, isiXhosa, Afrikaans and English with particular focus on the previously marginalised languages.
International Mother Language Day is observed every year on 21 February to promote linguistic and cultural diversity and
multilingualism. This year PanSALB has declared February 2017 as the month of language activism. In celebration of language
activism month PanSALB held various events throughout the month. These events included the launch of the campaign,
dictionary promotion activities, public hearings for the national department to implement the Official Languages Act, celebration
of international mother languages, and public lectures and awards. The objective of the campaign was to create awareness
about PanSALB and multilingualism, to make people aware of their constitutional rights, and to encourage the use of mother
languages.

11.2 ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
PanSALB has operated without a Board of Directors since the dissolution of the last board in 2016. However Chief Executive
Officer has played a significant role in improving the performance of the institution. The challenge of the institution is
under-funding from National Treasury. Executive management conducted a meeting with all three PanSALB structures, namely
PLCs, NLBs and NLUs, in order both to revive and rebuild relationships within the organisation and to deliver on PanSALB’s
mandate.
The institution appointed four SMS employees during the year under review, namely, Senior Manager: Human Resources,
Senior Manager: Institutional Performance and Governance, Chief Financial Officer and Chief of Staff. The Annual
Performance Plan for 2017/18 was tabled in Parliament on the 17 March 2017. The Quarterly Performance Reports and Budget
Expenditure were submitted. Change is the only constant in today’s business environment, forcing institutions to constantly
keep pace. Accordingly our institution has developed a Strategic Plan for 2017/18 to 2021/2022.

11.3 KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND LEGISLATIVE
CHANGES
Currently, no policy shifts and new initiatives are envisaged. PanSALB will continue monitoring the policy environment and in
the event of substantive policy shifts make the necessary adjustments to both the Strategic Plan and the Annual Performance
Plan. A number of policy pronouncements have a bearing on the work of PanSALB. In addition to the Constitution and the
PanSALB Act, the Norms and Rules for the Provincial Language Committees (PLCs) and National Language Bodies (NLBs)
have been published in Government Gazettes: Board Notice 92 of 2005 and Board Notice of 2005 respectively. For PanSALB
to implement these policy mandates, it must follow the guidelines for establishing, monitoring and evaluating the performance
of these structures.
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11.3.1 Relevant court rulings
There are no recent court rulings that have impacted on PanSALB’s mandate, or that may necessitate a fundamental change
in its strategic direction.

11.3.2 Planned policy initiatives
There have been no new policy shifts and initiatives. HR policies and conditions of service were reviewed and approved at
EXCO level. There is compliance with Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) prescripts.

11.4. STRATEGIC OUTCOME- ORIENTED GOALS
The construction of these goals is informed by the National Treasury Framework (NTF). The goals capture the nucleus of both
the PanSALB Act and constitutional mandate of PanSALB.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 1

Creation of conditions for the development and use of the South African
languages

Goal statement

Create settings that are conducive to nurturing language development, use and
discourse within the multilingual interplay among and symbiotic coexistence of
the official South African languages, Khoi, San and Nama, South African Sign
Language and their associated varieties.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 2

Advancement of the equitable use of all South African languages

Goal statement

Support the establishment of platforms that advance the equitable use of the
languages cited in strategic outcome-oriented goal 1 (above) with a meaningful
leaning towards the previously marginalised indigenous South African
languages.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 3

Establishment of a linguistic human rights ethos

Goal statement

Establish platforms to address linguistic human rights matters.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 4

Establishment of research capacity

Goal statement

Initiate, facilitate and support research into a range of topics relevant to
PanSALB’s mandate.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 5

Promotion of PanSALB’s mandated deliverables

Goal statement

Promote to an array of stakeholders the institution’s performance and activities
with regard to language development, language use/discourse and linguistic
human rights.

Strategic outcome-oriented goal 6

Creation of the organisation’s sustainable institutional ability to deliver on the
core business and comply with legislation, regulations and prescripts

Goal statement

Create a solid institutional and administrative base for PanSALB to carry out its
mandate in relation to finance, information technology, human resources,
institutional planning, and performance and risk management.
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PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION BY
PROGRAMME

12.1 PROGRAMME 1:
LANGUAGE USE, DEVELOPMENT AND EQUITABILITY
PANSALB PROGRAMMES
PanSALB conducts its activity through two broad programme areas, namely:
• Language use, development and equitability
• Administration and Institutional Support
The language use, development and equitability programme which constitutes the PanSALB’s core mandate is divided into
the following sub-programmes:
• Language development and use, which focuses on dictionary development and the activities of the NLUs
• Equitability of language use, which focuses on placing previously marginalised indigenous languages in public and
private institutions
• Linguistic human rights, which focuses on the investigation of linguistic rights violations and reporting on the status
of language rights
• Language Research, which focuses on the conducting of relevant research into language related issues in
collaboration with reputable research institutions.
• Language promotion, which focuses on the promotion of programme 1.
The basis of this programme lies in two sections extrapolated from the constitution: Section 6(5)(a) of the Constitution, which
provides for the promotion and creation of conditions for the development and use of all official languages, the Khoi, Nama
and San languages and Sign Language; and Section 8 (8) (b) and (c) of the PanSALB Act, which calls for the establishment
of the NLBs and NLUs. The former are responsible for advising the Board on language matters and the latter are responsible
for dictionary compilation. The prerequisites inherent within the two sections are enhanced in this programme by extending
attention to all South African languages but with a strong leaning towards indigenous South African languages and their
associate varieties. A further focus on matter of discourse /language use is included.

PROGRAMME 1: LANGUAGE USE, DEVELOPMENT AND
EQUITABILITY
The Auditor General of South Africa conducted an audit of the performance information for the financial year ended 31 March
2017. This was actually the first time that the PanSALB was audited on performance information since it was aligned to the
National Treasury framework for Strategic and Annual Performance Plan. The APP for 2016/17 financial year showed a great
improvement. The PanSALB reported improved performance for the year; however, the lack of clear business process or key
performance indicator technical descriptors prevented the AGSA from reaching a reasonable conclusion. This resulted in the
AGSA issuing a disclaimer opinion on the annual performance report. Below are the sub-programmes relating the to the core
mandate of the PanSALB.
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12.1.1 Sub-Programme: Language Development and Use
First Section: Dictionary Development
The focus of the first section of sub-programme is to continue with the development of dictionaries in the eleven languages and
extend this activity further to Khoi/San/Nama and Sign Languages. The by-line is that two additional National Language Units
shall be established with the possibility for more as per the demand of the potential emergence of new languages.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Language development and use
Strategic
Performance
Actual
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
2015/16
Oversight
reports on the
status of
dictionary
compilation by
the 11 NLUs in
order to
access
progress
identify gaps
and make
recommendati
ons for
improvement

Number of
consolidated
reports
prepared on
status of NLUs
activities by
each of the 11
NLUs

1

Planned
Targets
2016/17
1

Actual
Achievement
2016/17
1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment
on
deviation
Achieved.
Consolidat
ed report
on status
of NLUs
activities
compiled.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic objectives: Oversight reports on the status of dictionary compilation by the 11 NLUs in order to
access progress identify gaps and make recommendations for improvement
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achieveme planned target
2015/16
2016/17
nt 2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Number of
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
reports
Consolidated report on status of
prepared on
NLUs activities compiled.
the status
dictionary
development
by each of the
11 NLUs
Number of
44
44
44
0
Achieved.
NLU value-forNLU values for money reports
money reports
were compiled and submitted.
submitted to
the Board
comparing
costs of
dictionary
development
output budget
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Strategic objectives: Oversight reports on the status of dictionary compilation by the 11 NLUs in order to
access progress identify gaps and make recommendations for improvement
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achieveme planned target
2015/16
2016/17
nt 2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Number of
44
44
12
-32
Partially Achieved.
NLU reports
Target not achieved due to lack
compliance
of coordination within the NLUs.
reports
Intervention
submitted to
Improve coordination by
the Board
involving the editors-in chief to
through the
be part of the strategic planning
Accounting
and performance reporting
Officer
requirements.
Number of
NLU Board
meetings held
within a
financial year
Number of
reports on
activities
undertaken by
the NLUs to
promote
dictionaries
and dictionaryrelated
services

22

22

22

0

Achieved.
Board meetings were held
throughout the financial year.

22

22

22

0

Achieved.
Report on activities undertaken
by the NLUs to promote
dictionary-related service was
compiled.

Second Section: National Language Bodies
The emphasis of this section of the sub-programme 1 is on the enhancement of the mandatory deliverables of thirteen
National Language Bodies (NLBs) with regards to quality control. It focuses on the following:
•
•
•

•
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Language Standardisation (developing rules and standards, spelling and orthography, for the functioning of
languages, and promoting these rules and standards) in collaboration with the department of Arts and Culture, and
Basic Education and Higher Education;
Terminology development (creation of conditions for the development and use of terminology, verification,
authentication and popularisation of terminology including management of terminology in collaboration with the
Department of Arts and Culture, Basic and Higher Education);
Promotion of the development of literature (creating conditions for the preservation and promotion of South African
literary heritage and media in previously marginalised languages including Khoi, Nama and San languages and Sign
Languages, ensuring accelerated production of literary and media products, inculcation of the culture of reading and
provision of support to authors, media practitioners, their respective guilds/associations, internal and external
stakeholders as well as other role players.
Language in education (providing support to the development of teaching and learning (support) materials and
curricula in mother tongue using historically marginalised (oral, written and sign)languages; translation and
interpreting (ensuring quality of services).
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Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Language development and use
Strategic
Performance
Actual
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
2015/16

Reports on
initiatives by the
NLBs for the
promotion and
creation of
conditions for
the development
and use of
official
languages, with
focus on
formerly
marginalised
indigenous
languages, Koi,
Nama and San
languages, and
sign language

Consolidated
report on
status of use
and
development
of respective
languages

1

Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

1

Deviation
from planned
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment on
deviation

Achieved.
Consolidated
report on use
and
development
of respective
languages
compiled.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Objective: Reports on initiatives by the NLBs for the promotion and creation of conditions for the
development and use of official languages, with focus on formerly marginalised indigenous languages, Khoi,
Nama and San languages, and sign language
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
deviation
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Revised Norms
Revised
Revised
0
-1
Not Achieved.
and Rules for the
Norms and
Norms and
Inputs and comments
NLBs and submit
Rules for the
Rules for the
were received from
for consideration
NLBs
NLBs
three NLBs
and approval
approved by
approved by
(Sepedi/Sesotho sa
Board
Board
Leboa, Tshivenda and
English NLBs). Inputs
and comments received
from PanSALB
structures not sufficient
for the revision process
to be initiated.
Intervention
The next phase to the
revised norms and
rules will be done in the
next financial year.
Number of value13
13
13
0
Achieved.
for-money reports
13 Value for money
for each language
reports were compiled.
(related to the 13
NLB) comparing
costs of services
provided with the
budget
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Strategic Objective: Reports on initiatives by the NLBs for the promotion and creation of conditions for the
development and use of official languages, with focus on formerly marginalised indigenous languages, Khoi,
Nama and San languages, and sign language
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
deviation
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Number of NLB13
13
13
0
Achieved.
related
All NLBs compiled and
compliance
submitted the
reports
compliance reports.
Number of NLBs
13
13
13
0
Achieved.
constituted as
Term of office has been
required by the
extended for 13 NLBs.
Norms and Rules
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Number of NLBs
technical
committee
meetings held in
line with the
Norms and rules

13

NLB technical
committee
meetings held

13

0

Achieved.
NLB technical
committee meetings
were held in line Norms
and Rules.

Number of NLB
meetings held in
line with the
requirements of
the Norms and
Rules

13

13

15

0

Achieved.
15 NLB meetings held
in line with the
requirements.

Number of
meetings held by
each
subcommittee, per
NLB, as
prescribed by the
Norms and rules
Number of NLB
chairpersons
forum meetings
held as per Norms
and Rules
Number of
consolidated
status reports on
language
use/development
events and
initiatives

13

13

0

Achieved.
13 meetings by each
subcommittee per NLB,
as prescribed by the
Norms and Rules.
Achieved.
PanSALB Structures
Chairperson’s Meeting
were held on the 24
March 2017.
Achieved.
Report on language
use/development
events and initiatives
were compiled.

Number of
meetings as
norms and
rules

1

1

1

0

1

1

1

0
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Third Section: Provincial Language Committee
This section monitors the use of previously marginalised languages and the availability of language resource, with special
emphasis on translation and interpreting resources; resolving language rights violation; proposing amendment to the existing
legislations or by-laws; and policies and procedures; monitoring the development and promotion of multilingualism; advising
provincial MECs and legislatures as well as local government about proposed and existing legislation , by-laws, policies and
procedures; establishing and maintaining database of language role players, organisations, equipment, translation and
interpretation facilities and resources.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Language development and use
Strategic
Performance
Actual
Planned
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
2015/16
2016/17

Status
reports of
PLCs on the
initiatives by
PanSALB,
government
and private
institutions
including
individuals.

Number of
consolidated
reports on
status of
linguistic
human rights
in each of the
provinces

1

1

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

Deviation
from planned
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment on
deviation

Achieved.
Consolidated
reports on status
of linguistic
human rights in
each of the
provinces
compiled.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Objective: Status reports of PLCs on the initiatives by PanSALB, government and private
institutions including individuals.
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Revise the
0
Revised
0
0
Not Achieved.
Norms and
Norms and
Inputs and comments were
rules for the
Rules for
received from the Limpopo
PLC and
the PLCs
and Western Cape and
submit them to
approved
Gauteng PLCs. Inputs and
the Board
by Board
comments received from
PanSALB structures not
sufficient for the revision
process to be initiated. The
revised norms and rules will
be finalised in the next
financial year.
Intervention
The next phase to the
revised norms and rules will
be done in the next financial
year.
Number of
provincial
compliance
reports
submitted to
the Board

18
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18

18

0

Achieved.
Compliance reports were
compiled and submitted.
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Strategic Objective: Status reports of PLCs on the initiatives by PanSALB, government and private
institutions including individuals.
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Number of
18
18
18
0
Achieved.
provincial
Value-for-money reports
value-forwere compiled and
money reports
submitted.
submitted to
the Board,
through the
Accounting
Officer,
comparing
costs of
language
rights-related
services
provided with
the budget
Number of
7
9
7
-2
Partially Achieved.
PLCs
GPLCs, FSPLC, LPLC,
constituted in
MPLC, NWPLC, WCLC and
line with the
NCPLC are constituted.
requirements
The KZN and ECPLC term of
of the Norms
office has expired and not
and Rules
reconstituted due insufficient
funding.
Intervention
The KZNPL and ECPLC to
be reconstituted in the next
financial year.
Number of
14
18
14
-4
Partially Achieved.
PLCs
All the constituted PLCs held
meetings held
meetings in line with the
in line with the
requirements of the Norms
requirements
and Rules. The LPLC had 3
of the Norms
meetings, WCLC had 4
and Rules
meetings, GPLC had 3
meetings, NWPLC had 1
meeting, MPLC had 2
meetings and NCPLC had 2
meetings.
The KZNPLC and ECPLC
did not held meetings
because they are not
reconstituted.
Intervention
The KZNPL and ECPLC to
be reconstituted in the next
financial year.
Number of
29
36
29
-7
Partially Achieved.
subcommittee
4 GPLC, 5 NWPLC, 4,
s, per PLC,
FSPLC, 4 LPLC, 4 NCPLS, 4
constituted in
MPLC s, and 4 WCLC
line with the
subcommittees are
Norms and
constituted in line with the
Rules
Norms and Rules. The
KZNPL and ECPL term of
office has expired and will be
reconstituted in the next
financial year.
Intervention
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Strategic Objective: Status reports of PLCs on the initiatives by PanSALB, government and private
institutions including individuals.
Sub Program: Language development and use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
The KZNPL and ECPLC to
be reconstituted in the next
financial year.
Number of
10
Number of
10
0
Achieved.
meetings held
meetings
4 GPLC, 2 NWPLC, 1,
by
as
FSPLC, 1 LPLC, 2 WCLC
subcommittee
prescribed
subcommittees meetings
s, per PLCs,
by norms
were held during the year.
as prescribed
and rules
by the Norms
and Rules
Number of
PLC
chairpersons
forum
meetings held
as prescribed
by Norms and
Rules

1

2

2

0

Achieved.
PLC Chairperson’s forum
Meeting held on the 21 July
2016 24 March 2017.

12.1.2 Sub Programme: Equitability of Language Use
Premised on section 6(5)(b) of the Constitution this sub-programme aims to satisfy the requirement of equity of language use
within the South African multilingual linguistic landscape. It is designed to advance the maximum use of the previously
marginalised indigenous languages in public and private in both formal and informal mode. The spirit is to identify and classify
strategic institutions that could serve as springboard to launch with these languages progressive and sustainably on a massive
scale.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Equitability of Language Use
Strategic
Performance
Actual
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
2015/16

Report on the
initiatives by the
PanSALB, other
institutions and
private
individual(s) to
place the
previously
marginalised
indigenous
languages in
public and private
institutions in both
formal and
informal modes

Consolidated
reports
progress on
number of
platforms
created
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1

Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

1

Deviation
from planned
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment
on
deviation

Achieved.
Consolidat
ed report
on
platforms
created
compiles.
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Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Objective: Report on the initiative s by the PanSALB, other institutions and private individual(s) to
place the previously marginalised indigenous languages in public and private institutions in both formal and
informal modes
Sub Program: Equitability of Language Use
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Consolidated
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
progress reports
Consolidated progress
on language
reports on language policy
policy construction
construction and
and
implementation in public
implementation in
institutions.
public institutions
Consolidated
progress reports
on language
policy construction
and
implementation in
private institutions

1

1

0

-1

Number of
provincial reports
about
governmentrelated language
structures
submitted to the
Board

36

36

22

-14

Not Achieved.
No report on language
policy construction and
implementation in private
institutions. The institution
focused only on the policy
construction and
implementation in public
institution.
Intervention
Consultation with private
sector will take place in the
next financial.
Partially Achieved.
Target not achieved due to
budget constraints.
Intervention
Request more funds to
collaborate with
government related
structures

12.1.3 Sub Programme: Linguistic Human Rights
The Pan South African Language Board’s conception of the bill of rights and the inculcation of human right culture is in the form
of the linguistic human right within a multilingual symbiosis of all South Languages. Of key importance is to moot to extinction
the possibility of pockets induced monolingual society-a pseudo-multilingualism akin to the apartheid era. The quest for
linguistic human right is a mandatory responsibility that is constitutional conferred to this entity. The respect aspect required by
section 6(5)(b) of the Constitution is here addressed from right-the right of existence, fair treatment etc. The sub-programme
addresses these by Monitoring the use of previously marginalised languages and the availability of languages resources, with
special emphasis on translation and interpreting resources; resolving language rights violation; proposing amendment to the
existing legislations or by-laws; and policies and procedures; monitoring the development and promotion of multilingualism;
advising provincial MECs and legislature as well as local government about proposed and existing legislation, by-laws, policies
and procedures; establishing and maintaining database language role players, organisations, equipment, translation facilities
and resources. The responsibility of advancing the linguistic human rights agenda lies with the nine provincial Language
Committees and the linguistic human right unit.
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Sub Program: Linguistic Human Rights
Strategic
Performance
Actual
objectives Indicator
Achievement
2015/16

Investigate,
mediate
and
monitor
language
rights
violations

Number of
consolidated
reports on the
status of
investigation,
mediation and
monitoring of
language
rights
violations, to
ensure the
observance of
linguistic
human rights
by all state
organs

1

Planned
Targets
2016/17

1

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

Deviation
from planned
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment
on deviation

Achieved.
Report on
Linguistic
Human
Rights
investigation
s compiled.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Objective: Investigate, mediate and monitor language rights violations
Sub Program: Linguistic Human Rights
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Develop a
1
Developed
1
0
case
Case
management
Management
system to
system to
track and
track and
monitor the
monitor the
status of
status of
monitoring,
monitoring,
investigating
investigating
and mediating
and
language
mediating
rights
language
violations, to
rights
ensure the
violations
observance of
linguistic
human rights
by all state
organs
Percentage of
70%
70%
19%
-51%
complaints
(5/26)
responded to
during the year
and concluded
within three
months of
being received
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Comment on deviation

Achieved.
Case Management
Register to track and
monitor cases is in place
throughout the provinces.

Partially Achieved.
26 cases were received
and responded and 5
cases were concluded. The
other cases are pending
due ongoing investigations
and lack of capacity
Intervention
The Senior Managers:
Linguistic Human Rights
will be appointed in the
next financial. Appointment
of Linguistic Human Rights
Tribunal will be appointed
in the next financial year to
address the cases.
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Strategic Objective: Investigate, mediate and monitor language rights violations
Sub Program: Linguistic Human Rights
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Percentage of
70%
70%
70%
0%
complaints
finalised
during the year
through court
procedures,
within six
months of
being received
Number of
9
9
9
0
reports on the
status of the
linguistic
human rights
complaintshandling
process
handled by the
provincial
office
Number of
1
1
1
0
consolidated
status reports
on linguistic
human rights
events and
initiatives done
by the
provincial
offices

Comment on deviation

Achieved.
All language rights
complaints received were
not referred to undergo
court procedures.

Achieved.
Reports on Linguistic
human right complaints
compiled.

Achieved.
Consolidated status reports
on linguistic human rights
events and initiatives
compiled.

12.1.4 Sub-Programme: Language Research
This programme is meant to give scientific, academic and contemporary rigour and gravitas to PanSALB’s practical execution
of its language mandate. The locus of the Pan South African Language Board ‘s credibility as a consummate transformative
constitutional entity that commands authority, is manifested through this programme. This sub-programme also emanates from
Section 6(5)(b) of the Constitution. The requirements thereof are the promotion and creation of awareness of language use and
language rights and the creation of conditions for language development. It is designed to promote the PanSALB mandate
deliverables and to mobilise stakeholders for the purpose of supporting the entity. It is in essence the marketing space where
PanSALB shares its output and shows the impact it has in advancing the multilingual mandate.

38

Annual Report for 2016-17 Financial Year - PanSALB

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Language Research
Strategic
Performance
Actual
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
2015/16

Provide
scientifically
researched
solutions to
pertinent
language issues
that typify the
impact of the
dynamism of the
changing world
and times on the
South African
multilingual
landscape and
vice versa.

Number of
consolidated
reports
submitted on
language
research
performed
during the year
to the board

1

Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

1

Deviation
from planned
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment
on deviation

Achieved.
Consolidated
report
submitted on
language
research
performed.

Engage in
collaborative
research
projects with
reputable
language
research
institutions

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Objective: Provide scientifically researched solutions to pertinent language issues that typify the
impact of the dynamism of the changing world and times on the South African multilingual landscape and
vice versa. Engage in collaborative research projects with reputable language research institutions
Sub Program: Language Research
Performance Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation
Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement Targets
Achievement
from planned
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Percentage
0%
80%
0%
-80%
Not Achieved.
of language
No research staff was appointed
research staff
due to pending legacy litigation.
appointed
Intervention
The function of the research will
be allocated the Provincial
Manager to coordinate at National
Level.
Number of
0
22
0
-22%
Not Achieved.
dictionaryNo dictionary-related research
related
reports were done due to shortage
research
of staff and budget constraints.
reports
Intervention
submitted to
The function of the research will
the Board.
be allocated the Provincial
Manager to coordinate at National
Level.
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Strategic Objective: Provide scientifically researched solutions to pertinent language issues that typify the
impact of the dynamism of the changing world and times on the South African multilingual landscape and
vice versa. Engage in collaborative research projects with reputable language research institutions
Sub Program: Language Research
Performance Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation
Comment on deviation
Indicator
Achievement Targets
Achievement
from planned
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Number of
2
2
2
0
Achieved.
Language
Reports on language developed
Development
and use were compiled.
/and use
related
research
reports
submitted to
the Board
Number of
0
18
0
0
Not Achieved.
linguistic
No Linguistic human rights related
human rights
reports were compiled due to
-related
shortage of staff and budget
research
constraints.
reports
Intervention
submitted to
The function of the research will
the Board.
be allocated the Provincial
Manager to coordinate at National
Level.
Number of
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
reports on the
Report on survey/investigation on
language
language exclusion by a primary
user surveys
school in Mafikeng.
conducted
submitted to
the Board.

12.1.5 Sub-Programme: Language Promotions
In terms of section 6(5)(a) and (b) of the Constitution, PanSALB must promote or further language use and language rights,
and foster the creation of conditions for language development. Promotion is mentioned twice in these subsections of the
Constitution, with specific reference to different groups of languages. This indicates the emphasis placed on the promotion or
furtherance of various aspects of languages in the Constitution. This programme focuses on promotional activities to create
awareness of different languages in order to promote and further language use, language rights and language development.
This sub-programme is viewed as part of the core business of PanSALB. PanSALB has developed a stakeholder mobilisation
plan to coordination it relationships with its key stakeholders and create partnerships with them key to assist PanSALB in
fulfilling its mandate.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Language Promotions
Strategic
Performance
Actual
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
2015/16
Report on
promotional
initiatives
and
stakeholder
engagement
organised by
PanSALB
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Number of
consolidated
reports on
promotion of
status 1 of
programme 1

1
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Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment on
deviation

Achieved.
Consolidated
report on
promotion of
status of
programme 1.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Objective: Report on promotional initiatives and stakeholder engagement organised by PanSALB
Sub Program: Language Promotions
Strategic
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment on
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
deviation
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Report on
Number of
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
promotional
reports on
Report on
initiatives
promotional
promotional
and
activities on
activities on
stakeholder
dictionary
dictionary
engagement
development
development
organised by awareness,
awareness.
PanSALB
submitted to
the Board
through the
Accounting
Officer
Number of
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
reports on
Reports on
promotional
promotional
activities on
activities on
language
language
rights
rights
awareness,
awareness.
submitted to
the Board
through the
Accounting
Officer
Number of
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
reports on
Reports on
promotional
promotional
activities on
activities on
language use
language use
and
and
development
development
awareness,
awareness.
submitted to
the Board
through the
Accounting
officer
Number of
1
1
1
0
Not Achieved.
reports on
A report on
promotional
promotional
activities on
activities on
language
language
research
research
awareness,
awareness
submitted to
was not done
the Board
due lack of
through the
capacity and
Accounting
funding.
Officer
Intervention
The function of
the research
will be
allocated the
Provincial
Manager to
coordinate at
National Level.
1 Programme 1 and 2 promotion received from Programme should be benchmarked
against each other to determine level of promotion received.
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Table 1: NLB MEETINGS AND SUB-COMMITTEES MEETINGS FOR 2016/17
13 NLBs

NLB Meetings and subcommittees, per NLBs , as
presented by then norms and rule

Dates of Meetings

Setswana NLB

1 x Executive meeting

06 July 2016

1 x General NLB meeting

07 - 08 July 2016

1 x Plenary meeting for Terminology No4 Booklet
Technical committee meeting
Technical Committee of Language in Education
conducted snap survey/ investigation on Language
exclusion by a primary school in Mahikeng
1 x NLB meeting

18 & 19 November 2016

1 x NLB Authentication meeting

2-3 March 2017

3 x Technical committee meetings

19-21 April 2016, 27 Feb 2017 &
1 March 2017
19 October 2016

isiZulu NLB

14-15 Aug 2016

Sesotho NLB

1 x Sesotho NLB meeting

20 & 21
October 2016

Xitsonga NLB

1 x Language use/development activities
Workshop on Spelling and Orthography rules for
Sesotho
1 x Xitsonga NLB meeting
1 x Language use/development activities
Workshop on Spelling and Orthography rules for
Xitsonga

26-28 October 2016

1 x technical committee meeting
2 x Tshivenda NLB meeting

26-28 October 2016
28 July 2016 &
14 October 2016
13 October 2016

Tshivenda NLB

1 x Language use/development activities
Seminar on Spelling and Orthography rules for
Tshivenda
Sesotho sa Leboa
NLB

2 x technical committee meetings
2 x Sepedi/Sesotho sa Leboa NLB meeting

11-12 August 2016

29 July 2016 &
14 October 2016
25-26 July 2016 & 6 October 2016

1x Language use/development activities
Workshop on Spelling and Orthography rules for
Tshivenda

5 October 2016

2 x technical committee meetings
1 x isiNdebele NLB meeting

26 July 2016 & 7 October 2016
8-9 September 2016

1 x Technical committee meetings

29-30 September 2016

1x Technical committee meetings

22 April 2016

SiSwati NLB

1 x SiSwati NLB meeting

1-2 September 2016

isiXhosa NLB

No meetings were held. Term of office has expired.

Khoi and San NLB

1 x Khoe & San NLB meeting

29 September 2016
23 & 24 May 2016

English NLB

2x Language use/development activities
Community meetings
1 x English NLB meeting

Afrikaans NLB

1 x Afrikaans NLB meeting

30 September 2016

South African Sign
Language NLB

1 x SASL NLB meeting

1-2 September 2016

isiNdebele NLB
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30 September 2016

Table 2: PLC GENERAL MEETINGS AND SUB- COMMITTEES MEETINGS FOR 2016/17
Province

Meetings held by subcommittees, per PLC,
as presented by then norms and rule

Limpopo

The general PLC meetings held
Limpopo PLC held one Executive meeting to
plan for 2016/17
PLC General Meeting
PLC Executive Meeting
1 x Executive meeting and
1 x general meeting held by NWPLC

North West

Northern Cape

NWPLC subcommittees for Language in
Education and Language Rights and Mediation
held two (2) meetings during 2016/2017 FY.
Eastern Cape Provincial Language Committee
held no meetings, projects or subcommittee
meetings during the financial year (2016/17)
under review.
The Free State PLC held the Linguistic Human
Rights & Mediation subcommittee meeting.
The general meetings held

Gauteng

The NCPLC - no subcommittee meetings
The general PLC meetings

Eastern Cape

Free State

Number of
events
1

3-8 July 2016

1
2

4-5 August 2016
1 December 2017
19th – 20th May 2016

2

14th July 2016
& 14th February 2017

N/A

N/A
Term of office has expired.

1

22 March 2017

1

17 September 2017

1

28-29 June 2016
27 September 2016
30 November 2016

1
1
1
1
1
1

29 June 2016

The subcommittee meeting
-

Focus
areas:
Translation
and
Interpreting
Language in Education
Linguistic Human Rights and Advocacy
Status Language Planning

Status Language Planning Focus Area held a
Meeting with the State Law Advisor.
Western Cape

Western Cape PLC held the
Subcommittee meeting to discuss the
•
Annual performance plan (APP) Objectives /
Projects 2016/17
PanSALB matters (Revision of operational
Norms and Standards)
2x PLC general meetings held
•

Mpumalanga

Kwa – Zulu Natal

No PLC subcommittee meetings were held
during the financial year (2016/17) under review.
The Kwa-Zulu Natal Provincial Language
Committee had no meetings, projects or
subcommittee meetings during the financial year
(2016/17) under review

Dates of the Meeting

22 July 2016
2

23rd June 2016
19th October 2016

N/A
N/A

12-13 August 2016
23 March 2017

N/A

N/A
Term of office has expired.
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12.2 PROGRAMME 02:
ADMINISTRATION AND INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
The purpose of this programme is mainly to provide administration and support services for the optimal functioning of
PanSALB’s core business. These services include the full array of corporate management services, namely:
•
•
•
•
•

Finance and Supply Chain Management
Human Resources Management
Marketing and Communication
Information Technology
Institutional Performance and Governance

12.2.1 Sub-Programme: Finance and Supply Chain Management
The purpose of this objective is to ensure timeous and compliant procurement and finance and management purposes. This
is in line with a broader aim of ensuring that PanSALB puts in place sound fincial management practices to ensure good
corporate governance.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal 6: Creation of sustainable capacity to deliver on the core business of the organisation
and comply with legislative and regulatory prescripts.

Sub Program: Finance and Supply Chain Management
Strategic Objective: Delivery of financial management services, supply chain management services, and
management accounting and reporting services to PanSALB in compliance with PFMA prescripts and national
treasury regulations.
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Strategic
objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2015/16

Delivery of
financial
management
services, supply
chain
management
services, and
management
accounting and
reporting
services to
PanSALB in
compliance with
PFMA
prescripts and
treasury
regulations

Report on
compilation of
finance and
supply chain
management
in accordance
with required
standards and
timeframes
submitted to
Board

4
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Planned
Targets
2016/17
4

Actual
Achievement
2016/17
4

Deviation from
Comment
planned target to
on deviation
actual achievement
for 2016/17
0
Achieved.
Report on
compilation
of finance
and supply
chain
management
in
accordance
with required
standards
and
timeframes.

Programme performance indicators and annual targets for 2016/17 to 2019/2020
Sub Program:Finance and Supply Chain Management
Performance
Actual
Planned Targets
Indicator
Achievement
2016/17
2015/16
Number of the
budget submitted
to DAC in
accordance with
required
standards and
timeframes

1

1

1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Timeous
collection of
revenue as per
PFMA and
relevant prescripts
Number of
financial
performance
reports and
consolidated
annual financial
statements
submitted to
relevant
authorities (DAC
and National
Treasury in line
with the PFMA
prescribed
timelines)

1

1

1

0

4

4

4

0

Achieved.
AFS/ quarterly
report and
annual
financial
statements
submitted to
DAC and NT.

Procurement plan
submitted to
relevant
authorities (DAC
and National
Treasury in line
with the PFMA
prescribed
timelines)

Procurement
plan submitted
to relevant
authorities
(DAC and
National
Treasury in line
with the PFMA
prescribed
timelines)

Procurement plan
submitted to
relevant
authorities (DAC
and National
Treasury in line
with the PFMA
prescribed
timelines)

1

0

Achieved.
Procurement
Plan submitted
to DAC.

Number of
progress reports
against
procurement plan
submitted to
relevant
authorities in line
with PFMA
prescribed
timelines.

1

1

0

Achieved.
Report on
Procurement
Plan submitted
to DAC
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Actual
Achievement
2016/17

1

Comment on
deviation

Achieved.
Budget
Reports
submitted to
DAC and NT
in accordance
with required
standards and
timeframe.
Achieved.
Final Transfer
received from
DAC.
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12.2.2 Sub-Programme: Human Resources
The primary purpose of this objective is to ensure the recruitment, selection and placement of the correct and
competent workforce as well as on-going capacitation of the PanSALB workforce.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Human Resources
Strategic Objectives: Delivery of Human resource management services.
Strategic
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17

Delivery of
human
resource
management
services

Report on
Human
Resources
Plan and
Records
management
implementatio
n submitted to
relevant
authorities
(DAC and
National
treasury in line
with PFMA
prescribed
timeframe)

1

1

1

Deviation
from planned
target to
actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Delivery of
human
resource
management
services

Report on
Human
Resources
Plan and
Records
management
implementatio
n submitted to
relevant
authorities
(DAC and
National
treasury in line
with PFMA
prescribed
timeframe)

1

1

1

0
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Comment
on deviation

Achieved.
Report on
Human
Resources
Plan and
Records
management

Achieved.
Report on
Human
Resources
Plan and
Records
management

Sub Program: Human Resources
Performance
Actual
Indicator
Achievement
2015/16

Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

Deviation from
planned target to
actual
achievement for
2016/17
0

Comment on
deviation

Achieved.
HR plan
submitted to
DAC.

Human resource
plan submitted to
relevant authorities
(DAC in line with the
PFMA)

1

1

1

Number of progress
reports against
Human resource
plan submitted to
relevant authorities
(DAC) in line with
the PFMA
prescribed timelines

4

4

4

0

Achieved.
Progress reports
against HR Plan
submitted to
DAC.

Percentage
vacancy rate
against the
approved staff
establishment.

20%

20%

23.75%
(14/18)

3.75%

Number of progress
reports on training
against skills plan
submitted to
relevant authorities
(DAC) in line with
the PFMA prescribed
timelines

4

4

4

0

Not Achieved.
The following
positions were
filled during the
year:
CFO
SM: HR
SM: IPG
Chief of
Staff
SPM:
NW,FS, MP
and EC
PA to
Executive
Head
Languages
Chief
Language
Practitioner
FS and NW
Recruitment for
vacant posts are
in progress.
Achieved.
Training Report
compiled.

Number of progress
reports against
Employment equity
plan submitted to
relevant authorities
( DAC) in line with
the PFMA prescribed
timelines.

2

2

2

0
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Achieved.
Report on EE
plan compiled.
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12.2.3 Sub-Programme: Marketing, Communications and
Information Technology
The primary purpose of this objective is to market and communicate PanSALB to relevant bodies and individuals and
to ensure that PanSALB stakeholders are aware of its service. It further ensure that the PanSALB core business is
adequately supported through the provision of information technology services, platforms and reliablr applications.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Marketing, Communications and Information Technology
Strategic Objective: Delivery of marketing, communication and stakeholder management services.
Strategic
objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2015/16

Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

Delivery of
marketing,
communication
and stakeholder
management
services

Number of
consolidated
report
reporting the
overall
percentage
implementatio
n of the
marketing,
media relation
and internal
communicatio
n plans
submitted to
relevant
authorities
in line
with the PFMA
prescribed
timelines.

1

1

1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment
on deviation

Achieved.
Consolidated
report on the
implementati
on of the
marketing,
media
relation and
internal
communicati
on plans.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Marketing, Communications and Information Technology
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Percentage
40%
40%
40%
0%
implementation
of the marketing
plan.

Percentage
implementation
of the media
relations plan.

100%
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100%

100%

0%

Comment on deviation

Achieved.
Newspaper Advert
Layout
Banner Designs
Desk Calendar Design
Notepad/Journal Design
International Mother
Language Day - Microsite
and stationery design.
Achieved.
During this period
PanSALB appeared 291
times in the media which
represented over 700%.

Sub Program: Marketing, Communications and Information Technology
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Percentage
100%
100%
100%
0%
implementation
of the internal
communications
plan

Comment on deviation

Achieved.
News Flashes sent out
on an ad hoc basis.
Welcome Message,
Announcements
and Internal Newsletter.

Information Technology
Strategic Objective: Delivery of information technology services.
Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2015/16

Planned
Targets
2016/17

Actual
Achievement
2016/17

IT governance
framework
submitted to
relevant
authorities

1

1

1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Number of
progress reports
against IT
governance
framework
submitted to
relevant
authorities
(DAC and
National
Treasury) in line
with the PFMA
prescribed
timelines.

4

4

4

0

Comment on deviation

Achieved.
IT governance framework
submitted.

Achieved.
IT Governance
Framework Report
submitted.

12.2.4 Sub-Programme: Institutional Performance and Governance
The primary purpose of this objective is to ensure ethical conduct, corporate governance best practice and the monitoring of
institutional perfomance in order to achieve the targets set in the APP.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Creation of sustainable capacity to deliver on the core business of the organisation
and comply with legislative and regulatory prescripts.
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Sub Program: Institutional Performance and Governance
Strategic Objective: Delivery of high quality institutional performance enhancement and corporate
governance services.
Strategic
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Deviation from
Comment
objectives
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
planned target
on deviation
2016/17
2015/16
2016/17
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
Delivery of high
Number of
1
1
1
0
Achieved.
quality
consolidated
Consolidated
institutional
report
report on
performance
reporting the
status of
enhancement
overall status
corporate
and corporate
of corporate
governance.
governance
governance
services
submitted to
relevant
authorities
B in line with r
equirements
set out by King
III.

Strategic Objectives, Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements for 2016/17
Sub Program: Institutional Performance and Governance
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
Strategic plan
submitted to
relevant authorities
(DAC and National
Treasury) for
approval in line with
the PFMA
prescribed timelines.

1

1

1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Comment on deviation

Achieved.
Strategic plan submitted to
DAC and NT as per
prescribed timeframes.

Annual
Performance Plan
submitted to
relevant authorities
(DAC and National
Treasury) for
approval in line
with the PFMA
prescribed timelines

1

1

1

0

Achieved.
Annual Performance Plan
submitted to DAC and NT
as per prescribed
timeframes. The APP was
tabled in Parliament as
required.

Number of quarterly
performance
information report
against the Annual
Performance Plan
submitted to
relevant authorities
(DAC) for approval
in line with the
PFMA prescribed
timelines.

4

4

4

0

Achieved.
Quarterly performance
reports were submitted to
DAC and NT as per the
prescribed timeframes.
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Sub Program: Institutional Performance and Governance
Performance
Actual
Planned
Actual
Indicator
Achievement
Targets
Achievement
2015/16
2016/17
2016/17
Strategic risk
register compiled
and submitted to
relevant authorities
in line with
the Treasury
Regulation and
Frameworks
prescribed timelines

1

1

1

Deviation from
planned target
to actual
achievement
for 2016/17
0

Operational risk
register compiled
and submitted to
relevant authorities
in line with
the Treasury
Regulation and
Frameworks
prescribed
timelines.

1

1

1

0

Achieved.
Operational risk compiled.

Internal Audit
findings
implemented and
reported on to
relevant authorities
in line with
the Internal Audit
prescribed timelines

1

1

1

0

Achieved.
Internal audit report
compiled.

Tracking of AG
findings
implemented and
reported on to
relevant authorities
(AGSA) in line with
the AGSA prescribed
timelines.

1

1

1

0

Achieved.
Internal audit Report.
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Comment on deviation

Achieved.
Strategic risk register
compiled and submitted to
DAC.
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13

CHANGES TO
PLANNED TARGETS

No changes to planned targets during the year under review.
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LINKING
PERFORMANCE WITH
BUDGETS

14

Sub-programme expenditure
2016/17
Subprogramme
name

2015/16

Final
appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/
under
expenditure

Final
appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/
under
expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Programme 1: Language Development & Use
Sub-programme
1.1: National
Lexicography
Units
Sub-programme
1.2: National
Language
Bodies
Sub-programme
1.3: Provincial
Language
Committees
Sub-programme
1.4: Equitability
of Languages
Sub-programme
1.5: Linguistic
Human Rights
Sub-programme
1.6: Language
Research
Sub-programme
1.7: Language
Promotion

21 354

20 564

790

13 525

10 721

2 804

32 996

26 884

6 112

65

60

5

2 309

770

1 539

927

-

927

2 573

1 081

1 492
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27 535

26 686

849

3 690

1 260

2 430

8 528

8 485

(43)

0

0

0

11 448

9 676

1 772

0

0

0

8 828

8 911

(83)
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Programme 2: Administration
Sub-programme
2.1: Finance
and Supply
Chain
Sub-programme
2.2: Information
Technology

8 021

18 559

(10 538)

Sub-programme
2.3: Human
Resources
Management
Sub-programme
2.4: Marketing and
Communications

1 391

2 778

(1 387)

3 880

9 993

(6 113)

2
221

2 165

56

2 704

2 032

672

111 967

95 606

16 361

Sub-programme
2.5: Institutional
Planning and
Governance
Total
Expenditure

27 309

32 340

(5 031)

87 338

87 358

(20)

14.1 Revenue Collection
Transfers

The primary source of revenue of the PanSALB is the budget vote. This transfer revenue stream has increased significantly
compared to the prior year. In the 2015/16 financial year, PanSALB received R93.5 million and for current financial year
R115.8 million has been received.

Other Income

PanSALB has seen an increase in interest collection from the money saved in its bank accounts. This is attributable to
increased transfer. The PanSALB reported the R0.749 million for other income.

Consolidated Income – Including the NLUs

Overall PanSALB report the total revenue to a tune of R121 million at the end of 31 March 2017. This increased 23% compare
to prior year.

14.2 Programme Expenditure
The total expenditure for the financial year increased from R91 million (in 2015/16) to R95 million.

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

Capital investment for the PanSALB is confined to procurement and enhancement of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets which are used for production of daily operations. These assets are recorded in the asset register and
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives.

Category
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets- software/licenses
Other financial assets
Total
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2007

Consolidated
2016
437
40
1 713
2 190

3 084
120
740
3 944

2017

PanSALB
313
19
332

2016

2 947
2 947

PART C
GOVERNANCE
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15

GOVERNANCE

15.1 Introduction
Good governance underpins the processes and systems by which the institutions are overseen, directed, controlled and held
to account in accordance with the PanSALB enabling legislation, PFMA and the Companies Act, which is run in tandem with
the Public Sector Protocol on Corporate Governance (which covers the same if not similar principles contained in the King III
Report on Corporate Governance). The Parliament, the Executive Authority and the Accounting Officer of the PanSALB are
responsible for corporate governance.
Commitment by the PanSALB to maintain the highest standards of governance is fundamental to the management of public
finances and resources. The PanSALB is committed to the principles of accountability, transparency and integrity as
recommended by the King III and IV Code on Corporate Governance and this commitment is validated by the policies and
adopted.

15.2 Portfolio Committees
During the current financial year, the PanSALB appeared before the Portfolio Committee on Arts and Culture to account and
discuss a number of issues which range from the administration of the institution, governance and related matters. Below is a
summary of key decisions and progress:

ISSUE
Additional funding required by the PanSALB from the
Department of Arts and Culture

PROGRESS REPORT
The Department of Arts and Culture has provided
additional once-off allocation of R20 million to defray legal
and related costs.

Review of the PanSALB Act

The PanSALB has already identified areas that need
amendments.

Protocol on Communication between the DAC and PanSALB

It was agreed that the PanSALB CEO will
communicate directly with the Director-General of the
Department of Arts and Culture, alternative via the Office
of the Deputy Director General –Institutional Governance

15.3 Executive Authority
The PanSALB is a Schedule 1 constitutional institution according the PFMA. Unlike in a case of the public entity where the
Minister is the Executive Authority, the board of PanSALB is the Executive Authority. In term of the PanSALB Act, the Board
comprises 12 non-executive members and the accounting officer.
The mandate of the Board of PanSALB includes the following:
• Approve the Strategy and Annual Performance Plan
• Strive to attain and maintain the financial viability of the institution.
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•
•
•
•
•

Provide direction for the institution.
Establish a policy based governance system
Fiduciary duty to protect the institution’s assets and member’s investment
Ensuring effective risk management system
Ensuring sound financial reporting and accountability

The PanSALB on an annual basis submits its Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan and signs a service level
agreement (shareholder Compact) with the Parliament. Quarterly reports based on the targets attained are submitted to the
Portfolio Committee. The Minister dissolved the Board of PanSALB in January 2016 and this meant the Accounting Officer
effectively assumed the responsibilities of the Executive Authority.

15.4 Board Charter
In the year under review, the Executive Authority (through the CEO) has provided strategic direction and leadership by
reviewing and approving budgets, plans and strategies as well as monitoring the implementation. It has further ensured that
the PanSALB’s business is conducted ethically.
The Accounting Officer report on the PanSALB’s Annual Report confirms that the PanSALB will continue to be a going
concern into the foreseeable future.
The Accounting Officer determines the implementation and monitoring of policies, procedures, practices and systems to
ensure the integrity of risk management, internal controls and compliance to laws and regulations in order to protect the
organisation’s assets and reputation.

15.5 Composition of the Board
The Board was dissolved on 12 January 2016 for the year under review. The accounting officer has been acting as the
executive authority/board of the PanSALB in accordance with the PFMA.

15.6 Committees
The Board utilises governance structures that are established in terms of its PFMA, Treasury Regulations and King III to
assist in carrying out its roles and responsibilities. They are:
• The Language Committee
• The Audit, Risk and ICT Committee
• The Legal Committee
• The Human Resources, Remuneration and Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee
In the absence of the Board, these committees were rendered ineffective or not operational. The CEO constituted the Ad
Hoc Committee on Finance and Audit at the end of the financial year in order to obtain the peer review of the Annual Report.

15.7 Remuneration of board members
The remuneration of the members of the Board and Audit Committee was in line with a circular issued (24 June 2014) and
approved by National Treasury on the adjustment of the remuneration levels, service benefit packages for office bearers of
certain statutory and other institutions. This would have been amended accordingly in line with the adjustment of 2016
September issued by the National Treasury.
The remuneration of the members also included the following:
• Members of the Board and Audit Committee are remunerated for the full sitting of the meeting or at an hourly rate.
• Members of the Board and Audit Committee are reimbursed for all out-of-pocket-expenses including travel
(according to SARS annual kilometre rates) and accommodation costs.
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16. RISK MANAGEMENT
No
1.

2.

3.

Strategic
Objective
SO1 - Oversight
reports on the
status of dictionary
compilation

SO2- Report on
initiatives by the
NLB's for the
promotion and
creation of
conditions for the
development and
use of official
languages, with the
focus on formerly
marginalised
indigenous
languages, Khoi,
Nama and San
languages, and
Sign Language.
SO3 -Status reports
of PLC's on the
initiatives by
government,
PanSALB and
private institutions
including individuals

Risk Name

Risk Description

Cooperation
Framework
between
PanSALB &
NLU's

There is no
cooperation
framework to
manage the
relationship
between
PanSALB & the
NLU's

Late submission
of reports by
NLB's

Late submission
of reports by
NLB's

Capacity issues

4.

SO4- Report on the
initiatives by
PanSALB, other
institutions and
private individuals.

Capacity issues

Lack of capacity
within the
Languages Unit

5.

SO5-Investigate,
mediate & monitor
language rights
violations

Capacity issues

6.

SO5-Investigate,
mediate & monitor
language rights
violations

Funding

Lack of
Languages
Framework with
guidelines,
standards and
procedures
Underfunding of
the organisation,
such that PLC's
are unable to
complete their
work as they
cannot meet as
regularly as they
are required to.
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Summary of
Progress
A liaison committee
was formed to identify
and iron out
relationships gap
between the NLU and
PanSALB. This was
comprised of MANCO
members and editors
in chief.
Provincial managers
are now responsible
to compile reports
through language
practitioners assigned
to NLBS

Risk Ranking
50%

20%

No interventions
made

80%

PanSALB conducted
some public hearings
where Departments
and Public institutions
to provide updates
regarding the
availability of
Language Units
A complaint register
tool was developed to
enable monitoring of
language violations
rights.

20%

No interventions were
made

60%

40%

No
7.

Strategic
Objective
SO6 - Provide
oversight reports on
the status of
language rights in
order to keep track
of language rights
and violations.

Risk Name

Risk Description

Resources - both
human resources
capacity and
funding.

Lack of
cooperation
between units and
structures. The
lack of adequate
funding means the
Unit is unable to
complete its work.
Under staffing.

8.

SO7 - Provide
scientific research
solutions to
pertinent language
issues SO8 - Engage in
collaborative
research projects

Resources human resources
and funding.

9.

SO9 - Report on
promotional
initiatives &
stakeholder
engagement +
SO12

Absence of a
common
Language
Promotion
Strategy - this is
excarbated by
the nonalignment of
promotional
activities with the
stakeholder
engagement
plan.
Planning on
financial
management
services

Lack of a common
Language
Promotion
Strategy.
Lack of alignment
of promotional
activities with the
plan.

11. SO11 - Delivery of
Human Resources
Management

Summary of
Progress
A complaint register
tool was developed to
enable monitoring of
language violations
rights

Risk Ranking
40%

While underfunding
and understaffing
made it impossible to
venture into
collaborative
research, the
Research function
has however been
allocated to some
senior managers
within languages.
Communications and
Marketing was made
to work hand in hand
with the Languages
division in the area of
promotions.

30%

Late submission
of Annual
Financial
Statements

CFO has been
appointed to facilitate
improvement in this
area.

10%

Unresolved
litigation cases;
and
Vacancy of the
Head of HR

Unresolved
litigation cases;
and
Vacancy of the
Head of HR

Some key vacancies
have since been filled

40%

12. SO12 - Delivery of
Marketing,
Communication and
Stakeholder
Management + S09

No marketing
and
communication
plan

Lack of Marketing
and
Communication
Plan

No tangible progress
made in this area

30%

13. SO13 - Delivery of
IT Services

Delivery of IT
Services; and

Lack Marketing
Tools.
Inability to deliver
on IT services;

Supply chain & IT to
source out new

10%

10. SO10- Delivery of
Financial
management
services

40%

17. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT
Internal control is the responsibility of the management of the institution, since it lacks an internal control unit. It is a
fundamental requirement in all areas of operation, and each manager is responsible for identifying areas of weakness and
putting into effect controls to strengthen operating procedures. Management ensures that controls are adhered to.
Oversight is maintained through audit activities, the Risk Management Committee, the Audit, Risk and ICT Committee and
various governance structures which monitor the effectiveness of internal controls.
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18. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
PanSALB has an outsourced Internal Audit department within the Office of the CEO. Internal Auditing is an independent,
objective assurance and consulting activity that is designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps the
PanSALB accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.
During the period under review, the internal audit department provided assurance on risk management, internal controls and
governance processes through execution of the approved annual plan and additional requests. Internal audits provided
assurance governance, human resources management, finance and compliance.
Audit projects completed and executed, in line with the Internal Audit operational plan, are:
• Audit of Quarter 3 performance information;
• Audit of the Internal Controls within Finance and Supply Chain Management;
• Audit of human resources management;
• Follow-up on recommendations made to the Accounting Officer with respect to internal and external audits; and
• NLU review
The Audit Committee is responsible for:
• The effectiveness of internal audit and internal controls;
• Risk management;
• The adequacy, reliability, accuracy and regularity of financial information provided to the Board;
• Any accounting and audit concerns;
• Legal and regulatory compliance; and
• ICT governance.

19. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The PanSALB is a public entity tasked with the control of certain public funds. It is therefore required to act in compliance with
public prescripts. During the year under review, the following pieces of legislation were assessed for compliance:
• Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999, as amended by Public Finance Management Amendment Act, No.
29 of 1999
• Basic Conditions of Employment Act, No. 75 of 1997, as amended by Basic Conditions of Employment Amendment
Act of 2002
• Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act, No. 130 of 1993
• Labour Relations Act, No. 66 of 1995
• Employment Equity Act, No. 55 of 1998
• Unemployment Insurance Contributions Act, No. 4 of 2002
• Occupational Health and Safety Act, No. 85 of 1993
• Skills Development Act, No. 97 of 1998
• Skills Development Levies Act, No. 9 of 1999
• Promotion of Access to Information Act, No. 2 of 2000
• Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, No. 3 of 2000

20. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
The PanSALB has a Fraud Prevention Policy and Fraud Plan approved by the Board, which is yet to be revised. A
whistle-blowing policy is also being developed after we secured a leading independent service provider called Tip-offs
Anonymous to allow staff and external stakeholders to report workplace dishonesty while remaining totally anonymous.
Tip-offs Anonymous serves as a valuable, practical deterrent against dishonesty or inappropriate behaviour within our entity.
In addition to the above, a Free Call facility, an E-mail, Free Post or Free Fax alternative can be used. It is fully equipped with
trained operators who receive calls in English 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. The other official South African languages
are accommodated during business hours.
The information is then sanitised so that the tip-off report feedback is generated to senior management and the Audit, Risk and
ICT Committee for action.
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21. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Supply Chain Management is a highly regulated process within the PanSALB environment. To minimise the risk of conflict of
interest, a form for Declaration of Interest is circulated to members of Bid Committees before the commencement of the
meetings. To further enhance this process, management has acquired access into CIPC’s database in order to verify the
directors of the companies that do business with PanSALB.
This principle also applies to meetings of the Board, committees and staff of PanSALB. A register of close family members of
staff is annually updated and monitored by the HR division. Auditors request the following for CAATS purposes annually:
• Details of all the employees and members of the Board;
• A list of all suppliers that received payments in the current financial period; and
• A list of close family members, partners and associates of the members of the Board, management and SCM officials
During the year under review, there was no case of misconduct, nor negligence of duty from the members that required
removal from office or termination of membership of Committees of the Board.

22. CODE OF CONDUCT
The PanSALB’s Code of Conduct, set out in the organisation’s Constitution, is applicable to its Board and committees. There
is also a Code of Conduct for staff which is included in the organisation’s Human Resources Policy. During the year under
review, there was one case of misconduct that led to dismissal of an official.

23. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The PanSALB reviewed Occupational Health and Safety Policy (OHS) during the year under review.

24. COMPANY SECRETARY
The institution does not necessarily have human resources in the form of a Board Secretary, so that function is kept in-house
and is the responsibility of the Office of the CEO.

25. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Nelson Mandela Day
Nelson Mandela Day is a collaborative annual event that targets rural and disadvantaged areas with the aim of actively
directing young people towards becoming central to the envisaged skilled and capable workforce that supports an inclusive
growth path in the country. The PanSALB donated 67 dictionaries to nine schools across the provinces. This will enhance
learning and language development.

26. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
PanSALB Audit Committee was for the financial year disfunctional as a result of dissolution of the board in January 2016.

Annual
ReportReport
for 2016-17
Financial
Year -Year
PanSALB
02 Annual
for 2016-17
Financial
- PanSALB

61

PART D
HUMAN
RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

62

27

HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT

27.1 Introduction
The year under review marked tremendous positive change by reviving and bolstering corporate governance in terms of
implementation of human resources policies and procedures. It suffices to mention that all Human Resources Policies and
Conditions of Service were reviewed. The “Regulations with regard to the terms and conditions of service of the staff of the
Pan South African Language Board” was instructive in reviewing HR policies and Conditions of Service. Care was taken to
align the said policies and conditions of service to the prescripts and public service regulations as contemplated in the Public
Service Act 103 of 1994 & Regulations, as amended.
Of primary importance was the review and alignment of the Employee Performance Management & Development System
(EPMDS) to the public service prescripts. In other words, what became clear is that the key performance indicators of an
individual are brought closer to the institution’s Annual Performance Plan (APP). The achievement thereof was to bring
certainty as to how an employee will fairly qualify for notch progression and/or performance bonus. The concomitant stability
was brought to the institution by this certainty. With more automation capacity in place in future, it is the intention to have all
employees easily access policies and conditions of service by posting on a central repository such as an internet share folder.

Highlight Achievements
The institution appointed four SMS employees during the year under review, namely Senior Manager: Human Resources,
Senior Manager: Institutional Performance & Governance, Chief Financial Officer and Chief of Staff. Change is the only
constant in today’s business environment, forcing institutions to keep pace with such changes constantly. In PanSALB,
change took place in placing suitable SMS members whose urgent task was to manage focused change meant to restore
corporate governance and assist in achieving the constitutional mandate of the institution. For the year under review, a HR
Plan was submitted for approval. A detailed 3-year HR Plan is been developed for approval in due course.
At operational level, staff members’ personal files were updated as required in terms of prescripts. Qualifications audit of all
employees was finalized. The process of vetting of those qualifications as contemplated by the Recruitment and Selection
Policy is underway and will be completed in the ensuing year. At HR Division, the findings identified by the Auditor General SA
in the previous years were corrected as evidenced by the reports of Internal Auditors. Leave management has improved
significantly although it could be better managed if the process were automated. Line managers are more equipped to deal
with leave management of their subordinates through improved communication with human resources functionaries.

Challenges
Absence of general automation
•
•
•
•
•

The institution utilises manual attendance registers as a time management system. The risk is that employees are
likely to deliberately enter the wrong time without being detected with the result that they are paid for hours they did
not work for.
Leave management is largely manual capturing on Excel spreadsheets. There were instances where employees
took leave but their leave forms were not captured manually for various reasons.
An approved organogram is not loaded on the system. Drawing of reports become cumbersome and dependent on
the institutional memory of one or few individuals.
Staff members’ personal records are manual without being secured in a strong-room. There is a high risk of files
and/or information therein disappearing with valuable information, as has happened in the past.
Human Resources Policies and Conditions of Service are not on a central repository for ease of access by staff
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members. It is imperative for employees to have easy access to information about policies and conditions of service
or any other relevant documents that govern their relations and/or conduct within the institution.
Underqualified employees in supervisory/managerial posts
•
•

The staff turnover is far below the industry norm and therefore the institutional has to live for years with employees in
supervisory/managerial posts who add minimal value. Typically, 50% of employees left the institution on account of
dismissal, one employee (25%) reached retirement age and only one employee (25%) resigned on her own volition.
training and development was not done due to budget constraints

Absence of registration of any SETA
•
•
•
•

The institution cannot take in learners as contribution to National Development Plan
The institution cannot therefore claim discretionary funds for training undertaken
The WSP is difficult to introduce, implement and execute without registration with a SETA
HR is contracted to register with the relevant SETA in the ensuing financial year

Absence of Employment Equity Plan
•
•
•

There is non-compliance with the Employment Equity Act by not having the EE Plan
It is difficult to ensure employee representative without numerical targets set in the EE Plan
It is part of the HR strategy to submit the EE Plan for approval in the next financial year

Pending Litigation
•
•
•
•

An amount of R5 million was spend in defending litigation in respect of about 39 employees who were allegedly
unfairly dismissed in December 2014.
It is impossible to estimate when these legal matters pending before the courts of law will be finalized.
The negative effect thereof is that (especially critical) vacancies cannot be filled as they are under dispute, the
outcome of which is difficult to preempt.
The institution is however at an advanced stage of negotiations with the legal representatives of the litigants with a
view to reaching out-of-court settlement so as to curtail lengthy and expensive legal processes. This would be to the
benefit of all parties.

VACANCY RATE
The vacancy rate is based on permanent and fixed-term contract employees only, and excludes temporary workers. It is
determined by dividing the number of vacant posts on the approved organogram against the total number of filled posts
Total Number of vacant posts as at 31 Dec 2016
Total Number of posts on the organogram as at 31 Dec
2016
Total % of vacancy rate
and:
Total Number of vacant posts as at 30 March 2017
Total Number of posts on the organogram as at 30
March 2017
Total % of vacancy rate
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19
80
23.75%
17
80
21.25%

The CFO resigned on 7 September 2016 and she was replaced on 1 February 2017. The Senior Manager: EC Province retired
on 31 January 2017 and his successor will resume duty on 1 June 2017. The Senior Manager: Linguistic Human Rights was
dismissed on 29 June 2016 for incompatibility and he has filed with the Labour Court to be reinstated. The post will however
be filled by a temporary employee pending the outcome of the litigation. An Accounting Clerk was dismissed on 30 December
2016 following a disciplinary inquiry, and he has challenged his dismissal in both the CCMA and the High Court (Gauteng
North). His post was filled with a temporary worker pending the outcome of his litigation.

27.2 Human Resources Oversight Statistics
Personnel cost by salary band
Level

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Senior
Management
(Level 13 -16)
Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9 - 12)
Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6 - 8)
Skilled
(Level 3-5)
Unskilled
(Level 1 – 2)
TOTAL

18,124

% of personnel
exp. to total
personnel cost
(R’000)
26.1%

No. of
employees

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

18

1,006

10,930

29%

20

546

5,518

27.5%

19

290

1,638

17.4%

12

136

0.00

%

0

0

100%

69

Performance Rewards
Directorate/ Business
Unit

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Leadership
Corporate Services
Finance and Supply
Chain Management
Services
Languages Services
and Linguistics Human
Rights
Legal Services
Programmes
Measurable Objective
TOTAL

No. of
employees
rewarded

Average
rewards cost
per employee

0.00
0.00
0.00

Rewards
Expenditure as a
% of Personnel
Cost.
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0%

0.00

0.00

Training Costs
Directorate/
Business
Unit

Personnel
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training
Expenditure
(R’000)

0

0

0

Training
Expenditure
as a % of
Personnel
Cost.
0

No. of
employees
trained
0

Average
training cost
per
employee
0

Notes: Due to budgetary constraints no training activities took place during the 2016/17 financial year.
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Employment and vacancies
Programme

2016/2017
Approved
Posts
21

Senior
Management
(Level 13 -16)
Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9 - 12)
Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6 – 8)
Skilled
(Level 3-5)
Unskilled
(Level 1 – 2)
TOTAL

2016/2017
No. of
Employees
18

2016/2017
Vacancies

% of vacancies

3

33.34%

23

20

3

33.33%

22

19

3

33.33%

12

12

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

78

69

9

100%

Employment and vacancies
Salary Band
Senior
Management
(Level 13 16)
Highly
Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9 - 12)
Highly
Skilled
Production
(Level 6-8)
Skilled
(Level 3-5)
Unskilled
(Level 1 – 2)
TOTAL

Employment
at beginning
of period
12

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at
end of the period

9

3

18

23

0

0

20

16

4

1

19

12

0

0

12

0

0

0

0

63

13

4
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Reasons for staff leaving
Reason
Death
Resignation
Dismissal
Retirement
Ill health
Expiry of contract
Other
Total
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Number
0
1
2
1
0
0
0
4

% of total no. of staff leaving
0%
25%
50%
25%
0%
0%
0%
100%

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Number

Nature of disciplinary Action
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written warning
Dismissal
TOTAL

0
0
1
2
3

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status

Levels

Senior
Management
(Level 13-16)

FEMALE
AFRICAN
Current
Target
10

COLOURED
Current
Target

INDIAN
Current
Target

WHITE
Current
Target

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Highly Skilled
Supervision
(Level 9-12)

10

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

Highly Skilled
Production
(Level 6-8)

4

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Skilled (Level 3-5)

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled
(Level 1-2)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

25

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Disabled staff
Levels

Male
Current

Target

Female
Current

Target

Senior Management
(Level 13-16)

8

0

0

0

Highly Skilled Supervision
(Level 9-12)

9

0

1

0

Highly Skilled Production
(Level 6-8)

15

0

0

0

Skilled (Level 3-5)

11

0

0

0

Unskilled (Level 1-2)

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

43

0

1

0
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28

REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON
PAN SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE
BOARD

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND
SEPARATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
1. I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Pan South African Language Board
(PanSALB) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 74 to 123, which comprise of the consolidated and separate
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated and separate statementof financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget
information with actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the consolidated and separate
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
2. In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated and separate financial position of the Pan South African Language Board as at 31 March 2017, and its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of
South Africa, 1999 (Act no.1 of 1999) (PFMA).

Basis for opinion on the financial statements
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the auditor-genera'sl responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of my report.
4. I am independent of the public entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the IESBA code.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures
7. As disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures on the balance sheet for the previous
financial year ending 31 March 2016 have been restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the
constitutional institution at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2017.
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Responsibilities of the accounting officer
8. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA and for such internal control as the
accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
9. In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing
the constitutional institution's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention either to liquidate the
constitutional institution or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate
financial statements.
11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements is
included in the annexure to the auditor's report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
Introduction and scope
12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice
issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information
against predetermined objectives for selected programme presented in the annual performance report. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
13. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance
planning documents of the constitutional institution. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of
the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures
or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.
14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria
developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the
following selected programme presented in the annual performance report of the constitutional institution for
the year ended 31 March 2017:
Programmes
Programme 1 - Language use, Development and Equitability

Pages in the annual
performance report
28 - 32

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and
whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further
procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
16. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected programme are as follows:
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PROGRAMME 1:
LANGUAGE USE, DEVELOPMENT AND EQUITABILITY
Various indicators - indicators not measurable and reported achievement not
supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence
17. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievement of all targets in Programme
1 - Language Use, development and Equitability. This was due to a lack of technical indicator descriptions, proper
performance management systems, processes and formal standard operating procedures or documented systems
descriptions that predetermined and clearly defined how the achievement of individual targets would be measured,
monitored and reported, as required by the Framework for managing programme performance information. I was
unable to confirm that the reported achievement of these indicators were reliable by alternative means.
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the reported achievements.

Various indicators - reasons for variances between planned and actual
achievement of targets not supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence
18. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the reported reason for variances, as required
by the annual report guide for the constitutional institution. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my
work. I was unable to confirm the reason for the variance by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to
determine whether any adjustments were required to the reason for the variance as reported for the following
indicators:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Number of NLB meetings held in line with the requirements of the Norms and Rules.
Revise the Norms and Rules for the PLC and submit them to the Board.
Number of PLCs constituted in line with the requirements of the Norms and Rules.
Number of PLCs meetings held in line with the requirements of the Norms and Rules.
Number of subcommittees, per PLC, constituted in line with the Norms and Rules.
Percentage of complaints responded to during the year and concluded within three months of being
received.
Percentage of language research staff appointed
Number of dictionary-related research reports submitted to the Board.
Number of linguistic human rights-related research reports submitted to the Board.
Number of reports on promotional activities on language research awareness, submitted to the Board
through the Accounting Officer.

Other matter
19. I draw attention to the matter below:

Achievement of planned targets
20. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 28 to 39 for information on the achievement of planned targets
for the year and explanations provided for the under or overachievement of a significant number of targets. This
information should be considered in the context of findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information in paragraphs16, 17 and 18 of this report.

REPORT ON AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION
Introduction and scope
21. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have a responsibility to report material
findings on the compliance of the constitutional institution with specific matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
22. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the applicable subject matters are as follows:

Annual
ReportReport
for 2016-17
Financial
Year -Year
PanSALB
02 Annual
for 2016-17
Financial
- PanSALB

71

Consequence management
23. Disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who had incurred and permitted irregular and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure, as required by section 38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA.

Annual financial statement, performance and annual report
24. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA.
Material misstatements of revenue identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were corrected and
the supporting records relating to the consolidation was provided subsequently, resulting in the financial statements
receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Strategic planning and Performance management
25. The strategic plan was not provided to Parliament to facilitate the annual discussion of individual votes, as required
by treasury regulation 5.2.1.

Expenditure management
26. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R 3 529 000 as disclosed in note 39 to
the annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The
majority of the irregular expenditure was caused by non-compliance with supply chain management laws and
regulations and applicable practice notes.
27. Contractual obligations and money owed by the institution were not settled within 30 days, as required by section
38(1) (f) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 8.2.3.

OTHER INFORMATION
28. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report. The other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial
statements, the auditor's report thereon and those selected programme presented in the annual performance report
that have been specifically reported on in the auditor's report.
29. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance with
legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
30. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements and the• selected
programme presented in the annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work l have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor's report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to
report that fact.
31. I have not yet received the annual report. When I do receive this information, if I conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that
the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected I may have to re-issue my auditor's report
amended as appropriate.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES
32.

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any
form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies
that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.
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Leadership
•

The institution did not have a board in the current financial year which, resulting in ineffective and inefficient
oversight over the key processes relating to financial and performance management.

•

This further adversely impacted on the institution ability to develop, implement and monitor policies and procedures
especially relating to performance information.

•

This was further exacerbated by key management responsible for planning and reporting of performance not
availing themselves to discuss the process of planning and reporting performance information.

Financial and performance management
•

The consolidated and separate financial statements were not adequately reviewed for completeness and accuracy
prior to submission thereof for audit purposes resulting in material misstatements that were subsequently corrected.

•

There was no collection, collation, verification, storing and reporting of actual performance information thereby
posing a limitation on the work performed on performance information.

•

Policies and procedures that ensure that there is compliance with laws and regulations were not adhered to at all
times therefore leading to non-compliance with laws and regulations.

Governance
•

The institution did not have any audit committee meetings in the year under review, due to inadequate number of
appointed audit committee members, resulting in the audit committee not reaching quorum.

Pretoria
31 July 2017
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Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Responsibility
The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Pan South African Language Board (PanSALB). The financial statements presented on pages 74 to 123 have
been prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the
Accounting Standards Board and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).
The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates. The Accounting Officer also prepared the other information included in the annual report and
is responsible for both its accuracy and its consistency with the financial statements.
The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The Accounting Officer has no reason to believe
that PanSALB will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources. The
consolidated financial statements were approved and signed by the Accounting Officer on 31 May 2017.
The board was disbanded by the Minister of Arts and Culture on 12 January 2016 and as a result the audit committee became
disfunctional.

Dr RRM Monareng
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Financial Performance
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2017

PanSALB

2016
Restated*

2017

2016
Restated*

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sales
Liability extinguished - DAC
Other income
Interest received

3

315
156
1,326

489
1,381
575
1,159

4
749

1,381
630

1,797

3,604

753

2,011

116,018
3,615

93,692
2,709

115,868
-

93,542
-

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

119,633

96,401

115,868

93,542

Total revenue

121,430

100,005

116,621

95,553

(62,209)
(13,431)
(1,507)
(193)
(6,549)
(42)
71
(14,705)

(59,160)
(12,304)
(1,747)
(398)
(216)
(5,365)
(40)
(93)
(15,441)

(44,572)
(11,648)
(1,319)
(176)
(5,770)
(19)
(19,664)
(12,362)

(41,971)
(10,886)
(1,543)
(398)
(213)
(4,582)
(3)
(18,548)
(12,995)

(98,565)

(94,764)

(95,530)

(91,139)

22,865
(76)
(36)

5,241
(57)
98

21,091
(76)
-

4,414
(52)
-

5
11

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies
Gifts, sponsorships and donations

Expenditure
Staff costs
Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss
Finance costs
Lease rentals on operating lease
Repairs and maintenance
Transfers and subsidies paid
Cost of sales/Inventory
Other operating expenses

2
4

7
6
35
10

33
9

Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Loss on assets
Fair value adjustments

34

(112)

41

(76)

(52)

Surplus for the year

22,753

5,282

21,015

4,362

Attributable to:
PanSALB
NLUs

21,015
1,738

4,362
920

21,015
-

4,362
-

22,753

5,282

21,015

4,362
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2017

PanSALB

2016
Restated*

2017

2016
Restated*

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
Other financial assets
Receivables from non-exchange transactions

37,561
1,685
1,560
9,325
-

17,126
1,237
1,078
7,767
64

36,002
418
-

15,435
379
64

50,131

27,272

36,420

15,878

3,341
149
1,813

4,385
211
1,694

2,869
49
-

3,896
83
-

5,303

6,290

2,918

3,979

55,434

33,562

39,338

19,857

7,541
585
4,723

8,399
774
80
4,305

6,207
585
4,198

7,111
774
4,068

12,849

13,558

10,990

11,953

836
6,058

1,407
5,703

836
-

1,407
-

6,894

7,110

836

1,407

Total Liabilities

19,743

20,668

11,826

13,360

Net Assets

35,691

12,894

27,512

6,497

PanSALB
Accumulated surplus

27,512

6,497

27,512

6,497

PanSALB
NLUs

27,512
8,179

6,497
6,397

27,512
-

6,497
-

Total Net Assets

35,691

12,894

27,512

6,497

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other financial assets

12
13
14
17
30

15
16
17

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease obligations
Other financial liabilities
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease obligations
Retirement benefit obligation

18
19
31
32

19
20

Net Assets
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Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Figures in Rand thousand
PanSALB
Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Prior year adjustments
Balance at 01 April 2015 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

Accumulated
deficit

2,664
(529)

PanSALB

2,664
(529)

NLU's

Consolidated
net assets

--

2,664
(529)

2,135

2,135

-

2,135

4,362

4,362

-

4,362

Total changes

4,362

4,362

-

4,362

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2016
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

6,497

6,497

-

6,497

21,015

21,015

-

21,015

Total changes

21,015

21,015

-

21,015

Balance at 31 March 2017

27,512

27,512

-

27,512
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Cash Flow Statement
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand

Note(s)

2017

PanSALB

2016
Restated*

2017

2016
Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Sale of goods and services
Grants and donations
Interest income
Other receipts

Payments
Staff costs
Suppliers
Finance costs
Transfers and subsidies paid

345
120,051
1,326
166

482
94,535
1,159
2,001

115,998
749
4

91,419
630
1,381

121,888

98,177

116,751

93,430

(61,716)
(36,514)
(193)
-

(58,667)
(32,429)
(216)
-

(44,477)
(30,775)
(176)
(19,664)

(41,521)
(27,215)
(213)
(18,548)

(98,423)

(91,312)

(95,092)

(87,497)

21

23,465

6,865

21,659

5,933

15
16

(437)
(40)
(1,713)

(3,084)
(120)
(740)

(313)
(19)
-

(2,947)
-

(2,190)

(3,944)

(332)

(2,947)

Increase in other financial liabilities
Decrease in other financial liabilities
Net finance lease movement

(80)
(760)

80
(1,381)
2,079

(760)

(1,381)
2,079

Net cash flows from financing activities

(840)

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Increase in other financial assets
Net cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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778

(760)

698

20,435

3,699

20,567

3,684

17,126

13,427

15,435

11,751

37,561

17,126

36,002

15,435
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand thousand

Reference

PanSALB
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Other income

-

-

-

4

Interest received - investment

-

-

-

749

Receipts for
tender
documents
749 Interest earned
on cash and
cash
equivalents
invested

Total revenue from exchange
transactions

-

-

-

753

753

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies

91,967

20,000

111,967

115,868

3,901

Total revenue

91,967

20,000

111,967

116,621

4,654

(43,673)

(20,000)

(63,673)

(44,572)

(6,000)

(11,648)

4

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Expenditure
Compensation of employees

Administration

(6,000)

-

-

-

Depreciation and amortisation

(1,319)

19,101

Special
allocation for
legal costs
Note 25
(5,648) Legal costs
incurred
Note 6
(1,319)Note 15 and 16

(180)

-

(180)

(176)

(5,800)

-

(5,800)

(5,770)

Repairs and maintenance
Transfers and Subsidies

(20)
(19,470)

-

(20)
(19,470)

(19)
(19,664)

Goods and services

(16,824)

-

(16,824)

(12,362)

Total expenditure

(91,967)

(111,967)

(95,530)

16,437

21,091
(76)

21,091
(76)

Finance costs
Lease rentals on operating lease

Operating surplus
Loss on disposal of assets and
liabilities

80
02

-

Annual Report
Report for
for 2016-17
2016-17 Financial
Financial Year
Year -- PanSALB
PanSALB
Annual

-
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Additional
grants received
and the
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the DAC rental
benefit

4 Interest paid on
leased assets
30 Building rental
paid
1 Immaterial
(194) Transfers to
NLUs
4,462 Savings were
used for legal
costs

Note 15

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Figures in Rand thousand
Surplus

-

-

-

21,015

21,015

Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

-

-

-

21,015

21,015

Annual
Report
for 2016-17
Financial
Year Year
- PanSALB
02
Annual
Report
for 2016-17
Financial
- PanSALB

Reference

81

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
The following are the principal accounting policies of the entity which are, in all material respects, consistent with those
applied in the previous year, except as otherwise indicated:
1.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of
the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).
These consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in
accordance with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in
South African Rand.
In the absence of an issued and effective Standard of GRAP, accounting policies for material transactions, events or
conditions were developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 as read with Directive 5.
Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by
Standard of GRAP.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these
consolidated annual financial statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1

Presentation currency

These consolidated annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the
economic entity.
1.2

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial information of the National Lexicography Units (NLUs), which
are named in the notes to the financial statements. The NLUs are Non Profit Companies, representing the 11 official
lanaguages of South Africa, are situated at and administered by the respective universities. The units were consolidated
according to GRAP 6.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the consolidated annual financial statements of the controlling
entity and all controlled entities.
Control exists as per Section 8 (8) (c) of the PanSALB Act, which requires PanSALB to establish units to operate as non
profit companies, and PanSALB shall allocate funds to the units for the fulfilment of their functions; provided that the
memorandum of incorporation of such units shall include the following principles:
(i) The unit is accountable to PanSALB for moneys allocated to it.
(ii) The unit shall abide by the policies of PanSALB.
(iii) The unit shall adhere to the principles of promoting language development.
The consolidated annual financial statements of the controlling entity and its controlled entities used in the preparation of
the consolidated annual financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date.
Adjustments are made when necessary to the consolidated annual financial statements of the controlled entities to bring
their accounting policies in line with those of the controlling entity.
All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Minority interests in the net assets of the economic entity are identified and recognised separately from the controlling
entity's interest therein, and are recognised within net assets. Losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated controlled
entity may exceed the minority interest in the controlled entity’s net assets. The excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are allocated against the majority interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make an additional investment to cover the losses. If the controlled entity subsequently reports surpluses, such
surpluses are allocated to the majority interest until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by the majority has
been recovered.
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Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
1.2

Consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the surplus or deficit of the economic entity is separately disclosed.
1.3

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the consolidated annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts represented in the consolidated annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of
available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future
could differ from these estimates which may be material to the consolidated annual financial statements. Significant
judgements include:
Trade receivables and/or loans and receivables
PanSALB assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to PanSALB for similar financial instruments.
Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions.
The economic entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are
largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred,
estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to
determine the value in use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
Post retirement benefits
The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount
rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations.
PanSALB determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to
determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, PanSALB considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability.
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed
in Note 20.
Effective interest rate
The economic entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
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Accounting Policies
1.4

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•
it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the economic
entity; and
•
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses which is carried at
revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after
revaluation equals its revalued amount.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
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Accounting Policies
1.4

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.
The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.
The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Leasehold improvements
Leased assets
Books

Depreciation method
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

Average useful life
5 - 20 years
10 - 17 years
5 - 17 years
3 to 5 years
5 to 20 years
Lease period
Indefinite life

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date,
the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. However fully depreciated assets; which will be replaced in
the next financial year has been separately disclosed.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Assets which the economic entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of
these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in
the cash flow statement.
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Accounting Policies
1.5

Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:
•
is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or
•
arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the economic entity or from other rights and obligations.
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the economic entity; and
•
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The economic entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.
Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software, other
1.6

Useful life
3 - 5 years

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation.

86

Annual Report for 2016-17 Financial Year - PanSALB

73

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
1.6

Financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or
group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption
that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in
those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or
group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial
instrument (or group of financial instruments).
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is:
•
cash;
•
a residual interest of another entity; or
•
a contractual right to:
receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
•
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
•
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Loans to (from) PanSALB include loans to and from controlling entities, fellow controlled entities, controlled entities, joint
ventures and associates and are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
Loans to PanSALB are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans from PanSALB are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets and are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus interest, less repayments and
impairments. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. Impairments are determined by discounting expected future cash flows to their present value. Amounts that are
receivable within 12 months from the reporting date are classified as current. Current assets will be classified as noncurrent
when they are expected to be either realised, consumed or sold, as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are
not expected to be realised within twelve months of the reporting date.
An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance within operating
expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against operating expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance.
Financial liabilities consist of payables from exchage transactions and borrowings. They are categorised as financial
liabilities held at amortised cost, are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost which is
the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.
Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks (including call deposits). Cash equivalents are
short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For the
purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks,
net of bank overdrafts. The entity categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets.
Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement
or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with PanSALB’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs.
Classification
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions

Category
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial asset measured at fair value

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:
`

Class
Payables from exchange transactions
Finance lease oligations
Retirement benefit oligation

88

Annual Report for 2016-17 Financial Year - PanSALB

Category
Financial liability measured at amortised cost
Financial liability measured at fair value
Financial liability measured at fair value

75

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
1.6

Financial instruments (continued)

Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
•
Financial instruments at fair value.
•
Financial instruments at amortised cost.
•
Financial instruments at cost.
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Gains and losses
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
•
the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;
•
or
the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
•
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
derecognise the asset; and
recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred
on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.
If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to
service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis
of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a
new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a
financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and
the associated expenses are offset.
Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is
extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers).
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Financial instruments (continued)

Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.
Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.
Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs incurred on
residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets. Income tax [where applicable] relating to distributions to
holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in accordance with the
International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.
1.7

Leases as lessee

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease
is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the
lease.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the
remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability.
1.8

Prepayments

Prepayments are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Annual
78 Annual
Report
Report
for 2016-17
for 2016-17
Financial
Financial
Year -Year
PanSALB
- PanSALB

91

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
1.9

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the entity:
GRAP 18- Segment Reporting - issued February 2011. This new standard of GRAP: Establishes principles for reporting
financial information by segments. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of
this entity's operations and the enity is not required to apply this standard.
GRAP 20 - Related Party Disclosures - Issued June 2011.This new standard of GRAP ensures that a reporting entity’s
financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and
surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances
with such parties.
GRAP 105 - Transfer of Functions between entities under common control - Issued November 2010. This new standard of
GRAP establishes accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of functions between entities under
common control.
GRAP 106 - Transfer of Functions between entities not under common control - Issued November 2010. This new standard
establishes accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not under common control.
GRAP 107 - Mergers - Issued November 2010. This new standard establishes accounting principles for the combined entity
and combining entities in a merger.
Improvements to Standards of GRAP - Improvements are proposed to following standards of GRAP: GRAP 1-4, 9-14, 1617, 19 and 100 as part of the ASB's improvement project. The impact of implementing this standard is expected to be
immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
The following GRAP standards were applied for the current financial year:
GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits - issued November 2009. The new standard of GRAP dealing with the requirements around
accounting and disclosure of employee benefits including short term, long term and post retirement employee benefits. The
impact of implementing this standard is expected to be immaterial in the context of this entity's operations.
1.10 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
•
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
•
consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to PanSALB.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are
distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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1.11 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired.
The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the economic entity also test a cash-generating intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life or a cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year.
If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
When estimating the value in use of an asset, the economic entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be
derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal and the economic entity applies the appropriate
discount rate to those future cash flows.
Basis for estimates of future cash flows
In measuring value in use the economic entity:
•
base cash flow projections on reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management's best
estimate of the range of economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life of the asset. Greater
weight is given to external evidence;
•
base cash flow projections on the most recent approved financial budgets/forecasts, but excludes any estimated
future cash inflows or outflows expected to arise from future restructuring's or from improving or enhancing the
asset's performance. Projections based on these budgets/forecasts covers a maximum period of five years,
unless a longer period can be justified; and

Annual
80 Annual
Report
Report
for 2016-17
for 2016-17
Financial
Financial
Year -Year
PanSALB
- PanSALB

93

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
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•
estimate cash flow projections beyond the period covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts by extrapolating
the projections based on the budgets/forecasts using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years,
unless an increasing rate can be justified. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used, unless a higher rate can be justified.
Composition of estimates of future cash flows
Estimates of future cash flows include:
•
projections of cash inflows from the continuing use of the asset;
•
projections of cash outflows that are necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from continuing use of the
asset (including cash outflows to prepare the asset for use) and can be directly attributed, or allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis, to the asset; and
•
net cash flows, if any, to be received (or paid) for the disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
Estimates of future cash flows exclude:
•
cash inflows or outflows from financing activities; and
•
income tax receipts or payments.
The estimate of net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the disposal of an asset at the end of its useful life is the amount
that the economic entity expects to obtain from the disposal of the asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal.
Discount rate
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, represented by the
current risk-free rate of interest and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted.
Recognition and measurement (individual asset)
If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Cash-generating units
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the economic entity determines the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit).
If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified
as a cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or
cash-generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the economic entity use management's best estimate of future
price(s) that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating:
•
the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and
•
the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are
affected by the internal transfer pricing.
Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a
change is justified.
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The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is determined.
An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as
impairment losses on individual assets.
In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of:
its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable);
•
its value in use (if determinable); and
•
zero.
•
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
cash-generating assets of the unit.
Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that noncash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit.
1.12 Impairment of assets
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic
recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income
tax expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity.
Criteria developed by the economic entity to distinguish non-cash-generating assets from cash-generating assets are as
follow: [Specify criteria]
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.
The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.
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1.12 Impairment of assets (continued)
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time
every year. If an intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset was
tested for impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service
potential.
The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if
any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
Reversal of an impairment loss
The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
economic entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an
impairment loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual
value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
1.13 Payables form exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash) to another enity in exchange.

96

Annual Report for 2016-17 Financial Year - PanSALB

83

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Accounting Policies
1.14 Contingencies
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the
asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognised in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs. If an inflow of economic benefits or service potential has become probable, an entity
discloses the contingent asset.
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be requir to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
1.15 Related parties
PanSALB operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa,
only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of PanSALB, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in
instances where they are required to perform such functions. PanSALB regards all individuals at senior management as
related parties per the definition of the financial reporting standards.
Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, management in their dealings with PanSALB.
1.16 Retirement benefit costs
The entity operates a defined contribution plan. The plan is generally funded by payments from the entity and employees.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to the income statement in the year to which they
relate.
The cost of short-term employee benefits including salaries (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered,
such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
Bureau of the Woordeboek van die Afrikaanse Taal NPC provides for post-retirement medical and group life insurance
contributions in relation to current and retired employees. The expected costs of these benefits are accounted for by using
the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the expected costs of these benefits are accumulated over the service
lives of the employees. The valuation of this obligation is carried out by independent qualified actuaries at least once every
three years.
All actuarial gains and losses due to experience as well as adjustments to the original plan are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income over the average remaining service lives of employees.
1.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:
•
the economic entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
•
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.
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1.17 Provisions (continued)
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the economic
entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to
settle the obligation.
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
The economic entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications
that an outflow of resources may be probable are:
financial difficulty of the debtor;
•
defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
•
breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the
•
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact
•
on the ability of entities to repay their obligations.
Where a fee is received by the economic entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting
date. Where a fee is charged and the economic entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an
economic entity recognises the obligation at the higher of:
the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
•
Assets; and
the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
•
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
1.18 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
•
Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and
•
Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.
1.19 Revenue recognition
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.
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1.19 Revenue recognition (continued)
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrues to the entity directly in return for services rendered or
goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable, excluding indirect taxes, rebates and
discounts.
Revenue from exchange transactions is only recognised once all of the following criteria have been satisfied:
a) The entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;
b) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; and
c) It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods are passed to the
consumer.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the entity received revenue from another entity
without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally
recognised to the extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there is no liability to
repay the amount.
Grants, transfers and donations
Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred meet
the criteria for recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is raised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is
conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met. Grants without
any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.
Conditions on transferred assets require that the entity either:
- Consume the future economic benefits or service potential of the asset as specified; or
- Return future economic benefits or service potential to the transferor in the event that the conditions are breached
Royalties
Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.
1.20 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other expenses incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.21 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost.
Cash includes cash on hand and cash with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are held
with registered banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call
with banks.
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1.22 Comparative information
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative
amounts are restated. The nature and reason for the reclassification is disclosed. Where accounting errors have been
identified in the current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there is a change
in accounting estimate, the adjustment is made prospectively.
1.23 Events after the reporting date
If the entity receives information after the reporting date, but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, about
conditions that existed at the reporting date, it shall update disclosures that relate to these conditions, in the light of the new
information.
If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material the entity shall disclose the nature of the event and an estimate
of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.
1.24 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
When confirmed, irregular expenditure must be recorded in the notes to the financial statements. The amount to be
recorded in the notes must be equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to detemine
the value thereof. Where such impracticality exists, the reasons therefore must be provided in the notes. Irregular
expenditure must be removed from the notes when it is either:
(a) condoned by National Treasury or the relevant authority;
(b) it is transferred to receivables for recovery; or
(c) it is not condoned and is irrecoverable.
A receivable related to irregular expenditure is measured at the amount that is expected to be recovered and must be derecognised when the receivable is settled or subsequently written off irrecoverable.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided has
reasonable care been exercised.
1.25 Conditional grants and receipts
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity
has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria,
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised.
1.26 Budget information
Economic Entity is typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent),
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.
General purpose financial reporting by economic entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and
used in accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance
outcome objectives.
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/04/2016 to 31/03/2017.
The consolidated annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison
with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts.
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1.26 Budget information (continued)
Comparative information is included in the budget statement, page 68 to 69.
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
2.

PanSALB

2016

2017

2016

Government grants & subsidies

Operating grants
National Department - Arts and Culture
Department of Arts and Culture - Mpumalanga
Provincial Department - Mpumalanga Grant conditional
Lottery Grant

115,564
150
279
25

90,905
150
182
2,455

115,564
279
25

90,905
182
2,455

Total

116,018

93,692

115,868

93,542

Books
CD-Roms
Dictionaries

127
176
12

189
266
34

-

-

Total

315

489

-

-

3,615

2,709

-

-

Other income
Royalties
Workshop facilitation

27
129
-

12
540
23

4
-

-

Total

156

575

4

-

Administration and management fees - third party
Auditor's remuneration

3,768
2,607

3,574
2,926

2,494
2,139

2,627
2,462

Auditor's remuneration - External audit fees
Auditor's remuneration - Internal audit fees

2,095
512

2,585
341

1,627
512

2,121
341

Board and audit committee remuneration
Staff training and development
Bad debts written off
Legal fees

17
220
82
6,737

498
1
1
5,304

17
217
64
6,717

498
5,299

13,431

12,304

11,648

10,886

3.

4.

Sales

Gifts, sponsorships and donations

Donations
5.

6.

Other income

Administrative expenditure

Total
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Consolidated

Figures in Rand thousand
7.

2017

2016

PanSALB
2017

2016

Staff costs

Salaries

59,486

56,358

44,572

41,971

Basic
Acting allowances
Leave pay provision charge
Overtime payments
Bonus
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and
other allowances
Housing subsidy

42,437
666
206
1,327
4,207

41,053
984
989
51
1,188
3,648

29,034
666
206
1,138
4,207

28,081
984
595
51
991
3,648

1,378

1,577

1,378

1,577

9,265
2,000
142
237
355
4,647
1,884

6,868
2,058
138
40
16
(224)
4,837
3

7,943
1,684
120
227
4,036
1,876

6,044
1,653
114
40
4,237
-

Employer social contributions
Medical aid
UIF
WCA
SDL
Provision for post-retirement employee benefit
Defined pension contribution plan
Other payroll levies
Directors' remuneration - NLUs
Total
Number of staff members
8.

-

-

44,572

41,971

124

110

69

66

-

19,664

18,548

35
358
720
231
3,086
286
39
3,832
5
450
25
38
999
889
193
2
1,298
1,516
703

397
1,066
413
175
3,611
93
57
21
14
2,553
19
1,260
637
22
408
1,091
1,755
1,849

358
720
2,832
207
3,832
5
450
25
999
460
193
2
1,298
324
657

394
1,066
413
3,263
39
21
14
2,553
6
1,260
33
22
408
1,091
591
1,821

14,705

15,441

12,362

12,995

193

216

176

213

-

Other operating expenses

Advertising
Co-operation with other bodies
Communications and marketing
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Consumables
Entertainment
Language Activism
Lexicography Development
Linguistic Human Rights
Literature and Media
Motor vehicle expenses
National Language Bodies
Other expenses
Other project expenses
Project - Language in Education
Provincial Language Committees
Travel and accomodation
Utilities
Total
10.

2,802
59,160

Transfers and subsidies

Subsidies
National Lexicography Units (Note 26)
9.

2,723
62,209

Finance costs

Other interest paid

90 Annual
Annual
Report
Report
for 2016-17
for 2016-17
Financial
Financial
Year -Year
PanSALB
- PanSALB

103

Pan SOUTH AFRICAN LANGUAGE BOARD

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
11.

2016

2017

2016

Interest received

Bank
Bank deposits

12.

2017

PanSALB

1,116
210

874
285

749
-

630
-

1,326

1,159

749

630

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking
institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount
of these assets approximates to their fair value.
Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposits

2
4,633
32,926

1
3,912
13,213

1
3,277
32,724

2,649
12,786

Total

37,561

17,126

36,002

15,435

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default
rates:
Credit rating
zaA-1

37,561

17,126

36,002

15,435

70

70

70

70

-

70

-

70

115
1,570

1,237

-

-

1,685

1,237

-

-

Opening balance
Additions – finished goods
Issued (expensed) - consumables

1,237
525
(77)

1,255
(18)

-

-

Total

1,685

1,237

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral
Securities held by Absa bank on investment account
Total financial assets pledged as collateral for
contingent liabilities
13. Inventories
Work in progress
Finished goods
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
14.

2017

PanSALB

2016

2017

2016

Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors
Deposits
Royalties receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses

40
323
66
1,108
23

52
323
76
608
19

323
95
-

323
56
-

Total

1,560

1,078

418

379

The receivables are not considered to be impaired unless specifically provided for. The risk exposure of receivables has
been disclosed in note 23.
15.

Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated

2017
Cost

Office equipment
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Lease improvement / Research
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased equipment
Library books
Total

2016

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

603
1,373
2,403
2,836
71
9
456
2,317
29

(285)
(1,205)
(1,835)
(1,916)
(65)
(6)
(395)
(1,020)
(29)

318
168
568
920
6
3
61
1,297
-

538
1,373
2,833
2,771
71
9
480
2,321
29

(265)
(1,097)
(2,111)
(1,825)
(64)
(5)
(187)
(460)
(26)

273
276
722
946
7
4
293
1,861
3

10,097

(6,756)

3,341

10,425

(6,040)

4,385

PanSALB

2017
Cost

2016

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Cost

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Office equipment
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased equipment

333
1,055
1,095
2,246
9
456
2,317

(162)
(887)
(709)
(1,463)
(6)
(395)
(1,020)

171
168
386
783
3
61
1,297

320
1,055
1,585
2,203
9
480
2,321

(166)
(798)
(1,059)
(1,402)
(5)
(187)
(460)

154
257
526
801
4
293
1,861

Total

7,511

(4,642)

2,869

7,973

(4,077)

3,896
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Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
15.

2017

PanSALB

2016

2017

2016

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2017
Opening
balance
273
946
276
722
7
4
293
1,861
3

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Lease improvement / Research
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased equipment
Library books

Additions

4,385

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

99
117
199
22
-

(9)
(17)
(46)
(4)
-

(45)
(126)
(108)
(307)
(1)
(1)
(250)
(564)
(3)

318
920
168
568
6
3
61
1,297
-

437

(76)

(1,405)

3,341

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Consolidated - 2016

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Lease improvements /
Research
Donated Assets
Cell phones
Leased equipment
Library Books

Opening
balance
301
1,057
396
977
8

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

11
48
225
-

(5)
-

(34)
(159)
(120)
(479)
(1)

4
204
121
-

480
2,317
3

(26)
(26)
-

(365)
(551)
-

3,068

3,084

(57)

(1,709)

Impairment
loss

Total

(1)
-

273
946
276
722
7

-

4
293
1,861
3

(1)

4,385

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - PanSALB - 2017

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Donated Assets
Cell Phones
Leased equipment

Opening
balance
154
801
257
526
4
293
1,861
3,896
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Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

46
86
159
22
-

(9)
(17)
(46)
(4)
-

(20)
(87)
(89)
(253)
(1)
(250)
(564)

171
783
168
386
3
61
1,297

313

(76)

(1,264)

2,869
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Notes to the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements
Consolidated
Figures in Rand thousand
15.

2017

PanSALB

2016

2017

2016

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - PanSALB - 2016

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
IT equipment
Donated Assets
Cell phones
Leased equipment

Opening
balance
172
861
346
785
4
204
121
2,493

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

1
47
102
480
2,317

(26)
(26)

(19)
(107)
(89)
(360)
(365)
(551)

2,947

(52)

(1,491)

Total

Impairment
loss

(1)
-

154
801
257
526
4
293
1,861

(1)

3,896

Other information
Property, plant and equipment fully depreciated and
still in use (Gross carrying amount)
IT Equipment
Repairs and maintenance
Property, plant and equipment

94 Annual
Annual
Report
Report
for 2016-17
for 2016-17
Financial
Financial
Year -Year
PanSALB
- PanSALB

-

-

649

-

42

40

19

3
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